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Taseco Land Investment Joint Stock Company

EEPORT OF MANAGEMENT

THE COMPANY

Taseco Land nvestment Joint Stock Company (Mihe Company™ is a jaint stock company incormoratad
durer the Law oh Enterprise of Yietham in pursgant e tha Bustness Redistration Cerificate Mo,
M0407B036 issued by Hanoi Departmant of Planning and nvestment on 2% July 2009 and the
subseguem amended Business Registration Certificates, with the 22 amendment daled 17 Marsh
2028 as the test,

Tha principat activitis of the Company and its subsid@anes are investing and tading real estate
proparties; prowiding construction service, leasing and property management services, hotel
managemernt consulting, accommedstion services, restaurants, catering, post-investrment project
operation services and other ackvities.

The parent company of the Company is Taseon Group Joltt Stock Company " Taseso Graop').

Tha Company’s haad office is locatad at 1% floor, NO2-T1 building, Diplomatic Complex, Xuan Tao
street, Xuan Tao ward, Bac Tu Liem distict, Hanol city, Viatnam.

BOARD CF ESRECTORS

Membears of the Board of Directors dening the year and at the date of this report are:
Mr. Pham Wgoe Thanh Chairman

hr. Mguyen Minh Hai Wice Chaiman

Mr. Do Tuan Anh vio= Chainman

Mr. Do Viet Thanh KMember

Mr. Mejiyen Tram Tung Member

MANAGEMENT

kiambers of management dunng the year and at the date of this report are;

Rir. Mguryen Tran Tung General CHrector

Mr. [k Yiet Thanh Daputy Directar

kEr. Nguyen Yan Mghia Deputy Director

M. Yu Guoc Huy Deputy Dirschar

hir. Bui Xuan Yuong Dty Directar

Ms. Oac Thi Lan Huong Deputy Director

Mr. Mga Thanh Dung Deputy Director Appaintad on 3 Juna 2024
Mr. Khuat Trung Thang Deputy Director Resigned on 1 Movember 2024
BOARD OF SUPERVISION

Members of the Board of Supemvisitn dunng the year and at the date of this report aee:
Kk=_ Tran Thi Loan Head

Ms_ Nguyen Thi Huong Member

M. Dang Xuan Hen Member

LEGAL REPRESENTATWE

The legal reprezentative of the Company durineg the yesr and at the date of this report is Mr Nguyen
Tran Tung. Genera| Direcior,

AUDITOR
The auditor of the Compary 5 BEmst £ Young Yietnam Limited,
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Taseco Land Investment Joint Stock Company

REPORT OF MANASERMEMNT

Managameant of Tagaco Land Ihvestment Joint Stock Company {"the Company™) is pleased ta present
thiz report and the consclidated financial staterrents of the Coempany and ks subsidlanzs (ool letlvely
rafarred to a5 “the Group™) for the year anded 31 Becarber 2024

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIEILITY & RESPECT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FIMANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Managamant is rezponsifle far the consalidated financial statements of each finencial year which give
a bue and fair view of the consolidated financial posion af the Group and of he consdalidatad results
af its operationz and its consolidated cash flows for the year. In prepaning bhose consolidated inancial
statements, managemeant 15 reguired b

# selact suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
¥ make judoerments and estimates that are reasonabla and pradent;

* state whether sppliceble acoounting standards have Been falloyved, subjzet b any matenal
departures disclosed and explalned In the consolldated Rnancial staterments; and

# prepars the consolidated financial statements on the going concem basis unless it is inappropriate
to presume that the Groap will continue its businass,

Managemeant is responsitile for ensuing hat proper asccunting records are kept whilsh disalose, with
reasonable accuracy at any time, the consolidated financial position of the Group and for ensuring
that the accounting records comply with the applied accourting system. It is also responsible for
gafeguarding the sssets of the Group and hence for Bking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other inegu l&ritiss,

Managarment confimed that it has complied with the above requirements in prepanng the
sccompanying consdidated financial statements.

STATEMENT BY WANAGEMENT

Management does hereby state that in s opinion, the accompanying consvbidated financel
staternents give a tree and fair view of the consolidated financial positlon of the: Group as at 31
December 2024 and of dwe consolldated resalts of its operatlons and its consdlidated cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Yielmamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Entarprize
Agsounting System and the stalutery requirements releyvant to the preparation and presankation of the
consulidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REFORT

To:  The Sharehalders of Taseco Land Investment Jolnt Stock Company

Ve haye audited the accompanying censalidated financial stalements of Taseco Land Investmant Joird
Stock Company {"the Company) and its subsidianes {collactivaly rafarred to as “the Sreup®), as prepared
a1 26 March 2025 and set out on page 5 to 73, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as ar 31
December 2024, and the conzolidated income statement and conzolidated cazh Aow statament for ke
year then snded and the notes thersto.

Managemant's responsibility

Management i responsibie for the preparation and fair presentation of these conzolidatad Anancial
sterements it accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vielnamese Enterprise Accounting
System and the stahteny reguiraments relsvant to the praparation and presentation of the consolidated
financial statemants, and for such infemal conbrol as management determmines is neeessany b anable the
preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that are free from matedal
rsstatament, whether due to fraud or enror,

Abiditors” raspansiiy

Qur regponetbility is to exprese an opinlon on these consolldated financial sabaments based on our
audit We conductad qur audit in accordanca with Vietnamese Standards an Auditing, Those standards
racjuing that we comply with athical requiremants and plan and perfom he audit to cbiain reasonabls
agazurance shout whether the consolidatad financial skatemantz ara free from matarizl misetatemant.

An audit involves perfamming proceduras to obtain audit evidance about the amounts and dizclosures in
the consolicated finansial stadernants. The procedures selacted depend on the auditors’ judgment,
Including the assassment of the risks of materal misstaternent of the consolidated financral statenrents,
whether due ta fraud or error. In making thaoze nzk asseszments. the auditors consider intarnat control
relevant to the Group's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidsted financial =Etemants in order
o desigh audit procadures that are appraprate o the clrcl mstances, buk rat B lhe parposs of
EMpressing an opinion on the efecivenass of the Group's infemal contral. At agdit also includes
euvaluating the appropriabeness of accounting policies used and the rezsonablaness of accounting
estimates made by management as well as evaluating the averall presentation of the consdlidatad
fmanclal staterments.

Wi baligwve Ihat the audil evidence we have obtalned is sufflclent and appropnite to provide & basiz for
OuUr aUdi cfpition.

& usmneen inn o7 B el 3 Yoneen 5kl Smnlal



Shape the future
with conflderce

Opinfon

In our opinion, the consclidatad financial statements give a true end fair view, in alf matenal mspacts, of
the sonsolidated financial posiion of the Group as 2t 31 December 2024, and of the consolidated results
of ite oparatlons and s consolidated cash flows for the year then anded in acgordance with Vielnamess
Accounting Stamdards, Viethamsese Entemprise Accounting System and the statutory requiraments
relevant to the preparation and prasantation of the consolldated financial statements.

Er Yietnam Limited
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Ph A Le Hong Wan
Deputy Seneral Director Auditor
Aardit Practising Registation

Audit Practising Regisfration

Cerificate Mo, 2588-023-004-1 Cerllficate Mo, 4432-2023-004-1

Hanat, Vistnam

26 March 20253
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Taseco Land Investment Joint Stock Cpmpany B01-DN/HN
COMSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
a= at 3t Daceamber 2024
Gunanr;t: YD
Code | ASSETS Minfgs Ending balanga | Beginning bafanne
108 | A GCURRENT ASSETS 6,174,083, 784,146 | 5,706,231,935,650
it | 1. Cashand eash aquivalents a 58 FOF 110307 280,029,.511,028
111 1. Cash : 142,318 650,013 75, THE. 228 551
1132 2. Cash equivalents 217,300, 450 288 213273281 37T
120 | . Shori-fsm: invesfments 113,286.000,000 77,921 063,000
123 T.  Held-to-maturily investments 7] 113,230, 000,000 T7821,000,000
14 | I Cument sceoynts racelvabla 1402 235048487 [ 1,357 886,282,118
134 1. Shor-tarm trade recevables | 71 EOG 980158 88d | B72,511,57¢, 090
132 2. Short-term advances o
suppliers 7.2 3H2,774,175,596 SU8 617720 354
135 2, Shor-term oan recevables B Y4 1,040, 003,000 117,570, 500,000
135 4. Qther ghort-tem receivabias B 33512 820,002 B8, 986,202 455
137 B, Provision for doubiful short-
tarm receirabkas 1 {12,080,306,011) (9,804 915740}
146 V. Invantoras ik ) 4,078, 812402, 718 | 3,040,997, 437 281
144 1. Inventories 4,078,812 402 718 | 3,840 997 437 291
150 V. Ofher corrent 2ssels 120,055,322, 6456 T80, 397,705,213
151 1. Shortterm prepald expenses 17.561.203,663 21 468 589 002
152 2. Valoe added tax deductide 102, 435,631,804 116,026, 383,713
152 2, Tax and other raceivaiies
from the St=te 71487373 2. 902 731 584

EPEs
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Taseco Land Invastment Joint Stock Company

COMNSOLIDATED EALAMCE SHEET {continued)
as at 3t December 2024

Coola

200

210
215

218
219
2
221
222
223
278
229
2

240
241

242
250

252
253

i
251

270

ASGETS

.

M.

3"

NONM-CURREENT AS3ETS

Long-term recefvalles

1. Leng-tarat kean
receivabes

2. Clher long-term
receivabies

3. Provision for douhiful
lang-temt recaiables

Fixad aszals
t. Tangible Mxad azssks
Cost
Anarimy lated depraciation
2. Intangible fined assets
Cost
Accumulated amortisation

fnvestmeant properias
T Cost

2. Accurmilated depreciation

Lokg-tarn assofs

progress

1. Long-tern work in
progess

2. Constructhan b pregress

L orog-tarm lnvestments

1. |nvestments in associates

£ Investment Inother
antitles

3. Provision for iong-term
investments

Orhear fong-t8rim §338L%

1. Long-tem prepaid
expenses

2. Defered By assets

3 Goodwill

TOTAL ASSETS

MNotes

13

14

T3

15

ig
18.1

18.2

12
3.3
19

Endiitg batancg

3,150,044,628,110
820,000, 878,522
128, 100,40, 000
506,191,970,723
(14,281,153,800}
853,862 25,852
566,415,963 120
B63,182 330,138
(0G, TES, A75.018)
287 446,662,732
00,044 494 417
{12,587 821,685)
218,655,158,832

302 623,837,135
(72,768,678,353)

1,131, 787.834.005

1,191,787 834,095

25,500,630,457
2 805,935,507

44,184,600, Q00
(6,290,504 450}
120,028, 367,950
648, 380,838,294

20,3901810,302
39557.113 354

9,324,138,412,256

BO1-DN/HN

crimeng | YIvD

Beginning halamce
{Rlastatend)

4,376,350,512,740
1,033,583 714, 797
B31,157,120,000
MG, 717,748 587
(14,291,153 803
848 501,783,259
554 550,518 546
623,556,508, 313
{8,005, 570, 78T
204 050,364 673
257,260,188.256
{2,318,323,383)
330,650, 354,359
F02.B25 637,186
{81,983452 2387
1,955,519,731,528

316,022, 120,710
16304897 610,818

44,952, 457,258
7.578,820,132

46,274,600,000
{7.960,952,734)
182,762, 760,829
DE_ 282 564,169

21,901 488,449
43 578,308,241

10,082,622,748,350




Taseco Land Investment Joint Stock Company 801-DMHN
CONSOLIDATED BALAMNCE SHEET {continuad)
as at 31 December 2024
Curreney: WD
Seginnimg halanee
Code | RESOURCES Moteas Ending hafaos fResiated)
M0 | <. LABILITIES 5,089,922 995,081 | ©,005,356,544,036
310 |1 Current liabilities 2,084,244,234,237 | 3,468 287,530,660
311 1. Short-term trede payables 0.1 42€ 262 526 608 | 474,308,707, 705
3z 2. Short-term advances from
CUStOmErs 202 132, 753,661,202 25, 717,251,219
313 3. Stalutery obligations 21 220, 795 543 808 457 156,773,011
314 4. Payables to employees 32 248 158 203 32 585 608 597
K3 3 5, Shorl-termm acerued expenses | 22 115,908, 661,536 230, 0036, 1053 440
218 & ZShor-tarm unaarnad
revenues 0.081.223.474 8,552 562 354
Jig 7. Shortterm other payatlss 21 300290651400 | 1105877 451,659
320 B, Short-term kans 25 805 041,787 413 | 11281589 711,930
322 8. Bonus and welfare fund 27 28 581 440 2858 ¥,223,3308,252
32 | N Nor-cumreni Kabifites 3,015,678, 760,848 | 2,537,060,013,376
3365 1. Long-term unearnad
FBVETIES 23 25 873 445,063 79,442 157 141
337 2. Oihar long-berm Fabilitiss 24 127,886,676,360 |  214,802,765,485
S8 d. Long-tami ioans 29 26594 714,741,034 | 2.136.654,386,751
341 4. Deferred x lizbilities 34.3 143,320123 277 148,117,801 728
42 5. Lohg-tenm proviskons 26 23,883,774,060 10,251,861,27T1

ALY
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Taseco Land [nvestment Joint Stock Company

CONSOLDATED BALANMCE SHEET [continued)

as at 31 Decarmbar 2024

Cocle RESQURCES

400 0. OWNERS® EQUITY

470 L Owmners' equity

4199 1. Share capital

AR = Chdimary shares with
vofing rights

41z 2. Share premium

420 3. Cther funds belanging to

TS LIty

421 4. Lindigtributed samings

4218 - Undfisttibuted sannngs
Ly e and of pricr ear

dzth - Lndisfibutad samings
of curmant yaar

425 &. HNon=contraolling interests

440 TOTAL LIABILITIES AND

OWNERS' EQUITY

YU Thi Khanh Ha
Preparer

Motes

Wyuyen Thi Kitn Moan
Chief Accountant

Enciing balats

4,724,215 417,175

4,224 215,497,175
2.4870.0040,000 000

2 570,000,000, 000
106, 480,008,000

6315008, 3116
638,848,057, 721

2,369, 4.3G, 359

G3F 576,527,362
493 474,345 138

©,324,128,412 256

e

EU1-DMHN

cumanc | WND

Eeninning halance
{Restatan)

4,077, 266,204,354

4,077,268, 204,354
2,870,000, 0o, 000

2,970,000, D0, (00
108,480,005, 000

1,315,008, 316
447 7BO, 350 052

F9326,438, 018

J6E 453 912,033
543,690, 340, 536

10,082,622,748,190

Hang, Yiekham

| 26 March 2025
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Taseco Land Investment Joint Stock Company BO2-ON/HN
CONSOLIDATED INMCOME STATEMENT
for the year ended 31 Becember 2024
Currency: VD
Coda | ITEMS My Current pear Frewious year
o1 1. Reovanuse from sale aof
goods and rendering of
SBrvices 29.1 1,684 455,455400 | 3,237 812 268,032
02 2. Deductonsz 291 - -
10 3. Net revenue from gale of
goods and rendaring of
SArvVices 29.1 1,684 455, 455400 | 3237 812 268,032
1 4. Costof goody seid and
services rendered 60 | {1,264.5255635823) | [2347,451.43,559)
20 8 Gross proflt from sala of
goods and randerfng of
SBrviCes 419,527,889,777 254, 180,945,143
21 8. Finance income 232 825 847,560,379 85,108,8.26,945
22 | 7. Fmance sxpansas M {201,173,971,651) (99,212,748,099}
23 7 which: Interest axponsas {171, 882,525, 348] (75879130 121}
24 8. Shares of profit of
a3sotiatey 13.1 230,417 991 166,824, 26C
25 19 Salling expenses az (56,729,376,084) (85.107.814,704}
26 18. fseneral and administrative
eXpenses R {195,830,008,0001 | 1178,200,959,677}
60 | 11. Qperating profit 828,292 421,342 612 915,072 877
31 12. QOther incoma 4.493,280,051 22,081,180,211
az 18. Other expences 197 AT Z 144 935 (7,641,052,185)
40 | 14, Other (loss)profit {92,673, 864 384 14.420,11€.026
50 | 15. Accoumting profit befors tax B76,613,556,458 §27,335,100,903
51 14. Currant comporate Ineoms
fax expansa M| (194,701,83580%) | {151,594,780.304)
52 17. Deferred tax
incomef{expenses) 3.4 4,138,223,993 |3,053,030,601)
60 | 18. Met profit after tax 683,099,849 842 472,685 378,918

3 /84
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Taseco Land Investment Joint Stack Company

CONSOUDATED INCOME STATEWENT {continuad)

for the y2ar anded 31 Decamber 2024

Code TTEMS

totes

&1 1%, Net profit after tax attributablo
to sharaholders of the parent

62 20. Mef profit after tax attibutable
to non-controlling interests

70 21. Basiz eamings per share

T1 24, Diluted earnings per share

“u Thl Khenh Ha
Prapansr

Mguyan Thi Kim Mgan

Chiaf Accountant

o

Current vear

664,816,258,781

BOZ2-DNHMN

Currang @ Y

Frevous yegr

456,768,799,382

20,283,601,051 15,8%6,580,536
2147 1,532
2147 1,522
Hand, Vielnam
. 28 March 20
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Taseca Land Investment Joint Stock Company

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATENENT
fow the year andad 31 Deacamber 2024

Coge (TEMS Motas
I. CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ALTIVITIES
Nt  Profit before tax
Adjustments for.

2 Ceprecistion of tangible fixed
asset, investment properties and
amrtisation of intangible froed
assats (including amortisaiion of
goodwill}

03 Provisions

5 Profit from investing activities

05 Interazt expanses and bonds=
isEUance costs

08 Operating profit before changes in

worklng saphal

L] Dacresse{increass) it receivables

10 tncrease in inventaries

11 (Decregselinceease in payakles

12 Decreasafincreass) In prepaid
AXPANSAL

T3 Decrease in held-for-trading
sequnties

14 Interest pald

15 Corporabe incorme tax peld 21

17 Cther cash outfiows for oparating
actlvities

20 Metcash flows used in oparating

acthitlns
#. CASH FLOWS FROM INMVESTING
ACTMITIES

21 Purchase and construction of fixed
azsets and other long-temm azsels

L Procesds from dispasals of flxed
assets and other long-tamn asseats

23 Loans to other entities

24 Collechions from bomowers

25 Paymems for investimeants it otfver
entibies {net off cash hold by antity
being aoguired)

26 Proceeds from sale of investments
in cther entities (net off cash hold
by entity baing disposed}

27 Intarast receied

30  MNet cash flows fromf{used inj

investing ectivities

1

CLrmst s

875,611,556 456

59 614,186,519
15287,229,716
(932,124,186, 650)
171,BB4, 525, 348
200,275,312 491

29 461,413,631
(457,154, 472089}
(1,210,854, 308, 188)

22 653,913,589

(313,616,204,444)
(80,061, 750,988}

{5,859, 00 000}

{1,795,005,006,9091)

(780,972, 2865,108)

@1, 660,786
{156.477,000,000)
799,810,720,000

(16,827 581, 757)

2,247 077,531,798
0O 671,368,655

2.153,374,623,41%

BO3-DM/HBM

Curmne | VIND
Pravious yegar

£27,335,190,903

38,650,532, 068
5,734 509,103
(78, 443 D86 £659)

F878.130,121

667,208,275,526
(436,521,437.350)

{1,287 BOT 282894}

a7, 017642477
(36,248,510,943}
13,870,158,077
(123,341, 168,308}
(1735435 2860, 100}

{3,206, 000, B0}

11,311,561,607,565)

(610,744,603, 082}

(2B0.604,571,338)
295, 414,400,000

(268,208,404, 527)

4 05,000,000
26,187 448,072

(904,074,733,777)




Taseco Land Investment Joint Stock Company

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (cantinuesd)

for the year ended 31 December 2024

Ot

61

T

“Yu Thi Khanh Ha

Preparar

ITEMS Mdirfiens

lll. CASH FLOWS FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Capital contri bution and
issuancea of shares
Capital redermphbon
Drrawdown of borrowings
Repayment of boamronwings
Dilvlclends paid

MNet cash flows {used inyfrom
financing activities

Met increasefjdecreassa) in gash
for tha year

Lash and gash equlvalants at the
begianing of the year

Impact of exchange rate Auctustion

Cash and cash equivalants at the
arx} of tha year 5

Mguyen Thi Kim Kgan
Chief fccountant

12

BO3-DHIHN
Chrane | VYND
Curant yaar Frevits wear
gﬁn
842500000 11.502.000.000 ion
{14 143 D0E 023} . ERNS
2B T2 251873 4167 Bo7 066,417
{1,726,426,238, 951} {2067, 845 384 413} W
(456 462 525 0d1) (3073 262.530) };,\
&
(167,691,928 142y 2,0384TE6.409,674

1Tr0877,509,275  [177,159,931,6888)

2E8,029 511,025 dE6,18%, 442,606

459707110301 289,029,511,028

Hanaoi, Vietnam

A OA07R 26 March 202
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Taseco Land Investment Joint Stock Company BOS-DMHN

MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
as at 3F December 2024 and for the year then emded

1.

CORFORATE INFORMATION

Taseco Land Investment Joint Stock Company (“the Compary™ 18 a joint stock company
incorporated under the Law on Enterprise of Vietnam in pursuant ko the Business Registration
Cerftcate No, 3104079038 Isseed by Hanoi Department of FPlanning and erestmant on 29
July 2008 and the subsequent amended Business Registration Cerlificates, with the 220
amendment datad 11 March 2025 as tha latast.

The princlp activiies of the Company and its subsidiaries (‘the Group™) ara investing and
trading real estale properties, providing construclion service, leazing =nd  proparty
managemant sarvices, hots management consulting. sccommedation services, restEurants,
catering, post-investrent projact operation sarvices and othar activities,

The Group's nommal course of business cyche of real estate business starts at the tme of
applicstion for inwvestment certificate, perdformance of site clearance, constiuction of
Infrastructure and ends at the Bme of completion and bansfar of proparties to customers,
fAccordingly, the Group's nomial course of business cycle of real sstate business is above 12
mewiths, and of other activities iz 12 monihz.

The parsnt company of the Company is Taseso Gmoup Joint Stock Company ("Tasecno
Grop'),

The Company's head offics is located at 19 floor, NOZ-T1 bullding, Diplotratic Complex, Xuan
Tao Streat, Xuan Taoward, Bac Tu Lkem distdet, Hanolb city, Wiatharm.

The number of the Group’s employees az at 31 December 2024 iz 5§30 (31 Decambar 2023:
3BE),
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Taseco Land Investment Joint Stock Company BOS-DHHN

WOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
as At 31 Dewernber 2024 and for the yaar then anded

Z,
P

2.2

2.3

2.4

BASIZ OF PREPARATION
Aerounting standards and sysfem

The consolidated fitancial stataments of the Group, axprassad in Yistnam deng (YHDC), are
prepared in focordanca with Vistnamase Enterpriss Accounting Syatern and Viathamese
Accounting Standards issued by tha Ministry of Finznce as par

F  Decision Mo, 14%2001/Q0-BTC deted 31 December 2001 on the Issuance
Promulgation of Four Yietnamesa Accounting Standards {Seras 1),

e Decision MO, 10R2002MCIE-BETC dated 31 Decamber 2002 on the lssuance
Promulgation of Six Wiamameaze Accounting Standards (Senes 2);

 Decebon Mo, Z34200300-BTC dated 30 Decsmber 2003 on the Issuance
Framulgation of Sk Vistnamese Accounting Standards (Serdes 33,

p Decision oo 12200500-BTC dated 15 February 2005 on the Issuance
Framutgation of ShoVistramess Accounbing Standards (Seres 43 and

p  Decizsion Mo, 100200520-BTC dated 23 December 2005 on the Issuance
Fromulgation of Four Yietnamese Ascounting Standards {Series 5.

-4

: 2 2 2

Actardingly, the accompamying consolidated financial statements, including thair utilization
ara not designed for those who are not informed about Vietnam's accounting principles,
procedures and practices and furthermore are not intended bo present the consdidated
fmancial position and the consolidated resulls of operatdons and the consalidated cash flows
uf the Group in aseordanee with accounting prncples and practices generally accopted in
ceuntrias cthar than Vietnanm.

Appiied accountng docomentalion sysiem

The Group's applied aoscounting dosumeantalion systet is the General Jounna! system.
Fiscal year

The Group's fiscal year applicable for the preparation of its cunsolidated financial sEtements
starts on 1 January and ends on 31 December.

Accatiniling cutrency

The consolidated financial staternents are prepared in WYHDO which s afso the Group's
account ng cumency.
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Taseco Land Investment Joint Stock Company BOS-DN/HM

HMOTES TO THE COMSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
az al 31 December 2024 and for the year then endead

2.5

21

1.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Eaels of consolifidatian

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financiaf statements of the Company and
itz subsidianes for the year endad 31 December 2024

Subsidizries are uly consdidated from the date of acquisition, being e date an which tha
Company ohlgins control, and contnued 2 ba consolidated unti] the date that spch contred
CedsEs.

Th= financial skEtements of the Company and its subskdiznes used for consolldation are
prepared for the same reporimg peviod, Lsing consistent accounting policies,

A&l intra-company balgnces, income 2nd expenses and unrealiged gains or l0sses resulted
from intra-company transactions are eliminated in full.

Mon-controling Interesks reprasent the portion of proft o loss and net 2ssats not held by the
Group and are presented separately in the consalidated income siatement and within equiby
in the consolidated balance sheat,

Impact of change it the ownership interest of 2 subsidiary, without a boss of control, is
recorded in undistributed samings.

SUMMARY OF SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLKIES
Cazh and cash agquivalonis

Cash and sash equivalents somprise cash on hand, cash at banks angd shodt-tam, hlghly
wqubd vestments with an ofginal maturie of mss than threa montbhs that are readily
wotmvertible inlg known amounts of cash and that are subjact to an inskgnificant risk of change

in valua.

fiventares

Inventories 2re measzured &t their historical costs. The cost of inventories comprises costs aof
purchase, costs of conversion (including raw materlals, $lieect labor cost albher directhy related
onst, manufactunng general overheads allocated based on the nonmal operating capacity)
Incurred ke bringlng the inventones to heir present logation and condition,

In case the net real@ abile value i Iower than the argingl price, it must be calculated according
te the nat realizable valye,

Met realizable value represants the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
bess the estimated costs to complets and the estimaled costs necassary 1o make he sale,

The Group applles perpebial method to record inventories with tha value of inventories are
tetermined oh a waightad avarage basis.
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Taseco Land Investment Joint Stock Company ECS-DNHN

HOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANTIAL STATEMENTS {tonktued)
as st 81 Decembar 2024 and for tha yaar Ihen anded

R

22

4.3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {vontinued)
Invarntorlas (continued)
Feal estafe property

Real estate property acquired or belmg constructed fer sale in the crcinary course of bhuziness,
ratier than to be beld for rentat or capizl appreciation, is held as inventory proparty and |s
measured at the kbower of directly stinbutable cost incurred to bringing the inventory to its
prasent [ocetion and cordition and HRY,

Costa of real estate property includes the direct costs of forming such real estate and the
gensral costs allocated on the basis of the comespanding area of such real estale, includes:

» Feas of fraehold and |easchold land use nghtg;
w Construcion costs paid ko contractors for construction; and

» Borrowing costs, consultancy and design cosls, cosis for zite preparation, land
transfeming tax, construction overheads and other related costs.

Mat reallsabibe valbe is the astimated salng price inthe ordinary sourses of the business, based
on maket prices at e reporting date and discounted for the Bme value of moesy [Fmaterial,
lazs costs to complation and the astimstad salling expanszas.

The cost of the [hwentany mropedy sold retgnized i the ¢onsdlidated Income statement
bazed on spacific identification methad.

FProvigion for chaoleie imrenfories

An invantory provision Is made for tha estimated |oss arismng dee to be impaiment of valus
{through dminuwtion, damage, obsolescence, etc.) of rew materials, finished goods, and othar
invantories oamed by tha Group, based on appropriate evidence of impaimment avaifable at
tha balanca shast data.

Increases of dagreases o the provision balance are recorded info the cost of goods sold
account in the consolidsted income skatement. When inventones arg expirad, ocbsclazcance,
damage or Become useless, the difference between the provision previousty mads and the
historical cost of inventories are included in the consslideled insoms sktemsnt.

Receaivables

Feceivables are presentsd in the consolidated balance sheet at the camying amounts dus
from customers and other debtors, after provision for doubtful debts.

The provigion for doubtiu] debts reprazents amounts of outstanding racaivablas at the balancs
shest date which are doubtful of baing recovarad. Incraazas or dacreases fo he provision
balance are recorded as general and adrinizkcative expenses in the consolidatad incoma
skatemant Whan bad debts ara determinad as unracovarable and accountant writas off thase
kad dabts, the diffarencas betwaan ifw provision r doubtiul receivables previoushy made
and histoncal cost of racevables ang Included in the consolidated income staternant,
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Taseco Land Investment Joint Stock Company B0S-DM/HN

HOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FIMANCGIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
a3 gt 21 December 2024 and for the yaar then ended

3.4

3.5

SUMMARY OF SIGHIFECANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {eandinued)
Tangile red agseis
Tangible ficed assats ara staled at cost lBss sccumulaied depreciztion.

The cost of 3 tangibla fixved a=zset comprises its purchasa price and any dicectly attributable
coets of bringing the tangible fixad assat to working condition for its intandad use,

Experditures for additions, improvements and ranessls are added b the carrving amaount of
the =szets and expanditures for maintanance and repairs are charged o the consolidatad
incoma staterant as incumad.

When Engible fived assets are =old or retired, any gain or loss rasulling from thair disposal
(the difference: between the net disposal proceeds and the camying smount} is included in the
¢ongalidated income statament.

frtangibfe Hxed sssels

Intangibla fivad assets are stabed at cost 1ess accurmulated amonization.

The sost of an intengible fixed asset comprises its purchase price end any directly attribuiable
costs of preparing the intang hike fixed asset for s Int2rded use.

Expenditures for additions, impravemenls are added o the eamyltg amaunl of the assats and
other expenditures are chargsd to the consolidated income statement as incured.

When intangible fied assets are sold or relined, any gain or loss resulting from their disposal
{the difference betwesn the net disposal proceeds and the carying amount} is included in the
congalidated income statameant.

Lepsed a53efs

The detarmination of whather an smangament is, or containe 2 kez=e s basad on the
subsiance of the amrangement at incepbion date and requires an assessment of whether the
fulfilmeant of the anangement iz dependent on the use of 4 specific as2et and the amangament
conveys & mghl in use the asset,

A leaze is classified a5 a finance l=ase whensver the terms of the lease transfer substantally
altihe rigkz and rewards of cwnership of the assetto the lesses. All other lesses are classiied
as aperating |sases.

Where e Group is the lessea

Fentals under opersting lerses ere charged to the consolidated income stabement on a
stralght-line basls oyer the kease term,

Where ihe Group s the lessor

Assets sublect fo operating [eazes are included as the Group's fxded assets |n the
consolidated balance shaet |nifaf diect costs incumad i nagotisting an oparating kease ara
recognisad in the consolidated incone statement as incumad.

For other cases under operating leases, [ease income is recognised in the conacfidated
income statament on a sirEighl-ine basis over the lease fem.
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Taseco Land Investment Joint Stock Company BO9-LHHN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
25 at 31 Decembar 2024 ard for the year then anded

38

2.8

SUNMMARY OF SIGHIFICANT AGCOUNTING POLIGIES (continusd)
Depreciztion end amoartization

Depreciatan of t2ngible fixed assete and amortizaban of IRanglibde flxed asseb are saltolated
on a straight-ling hasis owver the estimated useful life of each asset as llows:

Buildings and sbructures 4 - 50 yearz
Mashinery and equipment 2 - 20 yoars
Means of transportation 3 - 20 years
Othars tangibla assats 3 -2h yaars
Computer software 2 =20 years
Land use rights 2 =20 years
Froject development rights 32 years 1 month
immasiment proparties

Invastmant properies are stated &t cost including tr2nsacton costs lass accumulated
depraciation. Investmant pmperties hald for capital appreciation are not depreciated but
subject b3 impairmeant review.

Subseguent expendilur: relating to an investment property that has alresdy been recognised
is added o the net beok value of the investment propary when s probable that futune
aconomic henefits, in excess of tha originally assessed standard of performance of the
exizting investmeant proparty, will fiow to the Graup.

Depreclation and amorisation of investrment propenties are cakculaled on a shizight-line basis
ovar tha estimabed useful life of sach asset 25 follows:

Land use rights 20 - 0 years
Buildings and struchures 20 - 50 yeors

Investment propeartles are derecognised when elther they have been disposed of orwhen the
vestment properties are pemmanenthy withdrawn from use and no fulure economic beneft is
expectad from s disposal. The difference betwean the ner disposal proceads and the carrying
araiint of the assats s recognised in the consolidated income statement in the year of
relireren of dispesal

Transfers are made b Invastment propertles when, and only when, thers [5 & change in Use,
eviclenced by ending of owner-gecupation, commeancermeant of an operaling [sase to ancthar
party or ending of construction or developrment. Transfers are made from ineeshment
properties when, and only when, there i3 change in use, evidenced by commensement of
ohmer-acsupallon of commensamenlt of development with a view 1o sala. The ransfer friom
imveshment propany b ownar-oecupied proparty of inventores doas not change tha cost or
the carrying value of the property for subsequeent accounting at the date of change in use.

Borrowing cosis

Bomowing coats consiat of interest and other sosts that an enbty iturs in connsstioh with the:
bantwing of furids. Bommwing costs ars recorded as axpense dusing the year In which they
are incurred, except to the extent that they are capitalised a5 explained i the follkowing

paragraph.
Barmradng costs hat ave directly attribulable to the acouisilion, construction or producion of

an assel that necessarily take a substantial period of ime to gel ready for its intended use or
spule are capitlised & part of the cust of he respadtive assel

20
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Taseco Land Investmant Joint Stock Company BOS-DN/MHN

NOTES TO THE CONSCOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 Decemnbar 2024 and for the year then ended

110

311

SIMMARY OF SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING FAOLICIES (continued)

FPropald expansas

Frepaid expenses are reported s shorterm o long-term prepald sxpenses on the
sonsolaled balanoe sheot and amotised over the perod forwhich tha amounts are paid or
the petioed In whlch ecanomls hensfits are generated inralation 1o these expenses,

Prenaidf fand rental

The prepaid land rental represents the unamortised balance of sdvance payment made in
accordance with the lease contract. Such prepaid rental is ecognised as & long-temm prepaid
expense for allecation to the comsalidated oo statemeant over the remaining lease perlod
according to Gircular 4520 A TT-BCT issued by the Minlstty of Finanes o 25 Aprll 2013,

Buszsinass combinations and gooowili

Buziness combinations are accounted fur using the punshase method, The sost of B business
combination is measured as the fale value of assels ghvan, aguity instrumeants issoed and
labllldes incumed or assumed at the date of exchanga plus any costs directly atiributabla o
tha huzinass combination. [dentfiable azzets and liabiliies and contingent labiliies assurmed
itn 4 businass combination 2re measured initially at fair valees st the date of business
combination.

Socdwill acguired in 3 business combinaian is initislly measwrad at cost being the excess of
the sl the RUsiness combination ower the Group’s interest it the net fair value of tha
acquirae’s identifiable assats, liabilties and conlinpent liabilities. If the cost of 8 business
pombinztion s 1ess than the fair value of the net assets of the sabsidlary asguired, the
diffarence is recagnized directly in the consolidated incorne statement. ARy inltlal recognitlon,
goadwill is measurad at cost iess any aceumulated amartisation, Goodwill ks amortised over
10-year period on a straightline basis. The Group condueks the pencdical review for
impzimment of goodwlll of [nvesbment In subsidiarias. IF thera ara indicators of mpairmant loss
Incurred |s higher than the vearly allocated amount of goodwill on the straightdine basis, the
imipainment loss will be recorded in the consolidated income statament

Business combinations invodving ehlfitles andar cammon conivol

& by siness combination invohling anfities under commaon conbol is & buginess combination in
which all of the combinimg entities or businesses are ultimately controlled by the same party
of parties both before and after the business combination, and hat control ks ot ransitory,
&n entity may be controlled by an ndlvidual o group of individuals under a contrachial
agreement,

Business combinaions involving entities under commeon contred are ascourled for as follows:

» The assels and liabilities of the lwe combinsd anbities are rafacted at thair camying
amountz on the date of business combination;,

= No goodwill is recognised from the business combination;

r The comsdlldated incame statement refacts the rasulis of the combined anlities fnom the
date of the businass compination; amd

» Any diffierence between the consideration pald and the: net assets of the acquines i
resmrded in equiky.
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Taseco Land Investment Joint Stock Company BO8-DNMHN

NOTES T2 THE CONSOLIDATED FIMANGIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
ag at 3t Decamber 20224 and for the year then ended

12

SUNMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLKIES {continued)
frnvesimanis

invasimants it associatas

The Group’s investment in jointly controflad anbity is accounted for using the equity rethod of
accounting. An assacigte is an anbty in which the Group has significant influence that |s
neithar subzidiaries nor joint ventures, The Group generaly deems it has significant infl uehes
if it e 204 or monz of the yoting ights in the investes.

Linder the equity rmethod, the investment is caried in the consolidated balance sheet at cost
plus post acquisilion changes in the Group's share of et assets of the associates, Goodwill
ariging on acouistien of the asoodiate s neuded in the carrying amount of the Ivestiment,
Gootwill i not amortizad and subject to annual review for impaiment. The consolidated
income statement reflecks the share of the post-acquisition results of operation of the
associate.

Tha sham of post-acouisidon profibiless) of the assoclates i presemed on faga of the
consdidated income skatement and its share of pest-acquizition movements in rasenves s
retogrrised I reseres The sumtilatve post-acqulsitlon movements ars adjusted against the
camying amourd of the investment Dividendfproft sharing received of receivable from
asenciates raduces the carmying amount of tha invastmant

Tha mancisl statements of tha as=ociates ara prepared for the same reparting perod and
use the same acoounting policies #3s the consolidated financial statements of the Group.
Yhere necessary, consolidated adjuskments are made b bring the accounting pdicies in line
with those of the Group.

invasimenis it other anlitias

Invastmants in other eniiiies are skated =t their acquisition costs.

Frovision far diminution 0 valie of ivesiments

Pravision of he investment is made when there are relisble evidence of the diminution in
value of those investrments at the bakanss sheet date,

Increases of dacreases fo the provision bakance are recorded as fnance axpanses in the
consolidated imcoma statarment,

Hedo=to-matuniy investments
Hebd-to-meturlty ifvestments are stalzd althelr acsulsition eosts, Aler infial recognition, hekd-
f-matumty invesimente are measured at recoverabla amount. Any impaiment I0es incurmed

is recogrised as finance axpenses in the consolidated income statements and deducted
against the valuae of such mvestrments.

22




Taseco Land Investment Joint Stock Company BOg-DN/HN

MOTES TO THE COMSOLIDATED FINAMTIAL STATEMENTS (Gontired)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then endad

3.
3.13

314

318

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFECANT ACCOUNTING FOLICIES (continued)
Payahfas and sacocruals

Payables and acoruals are recognized for amounts ko be paid in the futura for goods and
satvicss received, whether or not billed to the Group.

Payables and sccruals to construsten contractors for real estsfe projects se recognized
acconding to work compliad acceptance cerifcates Dotweon related parfies, regardiess of
whethar o not billed to the Sroup.

Business Cooperation cortract (BET)
in case B8CC diskibutes profts after fax co-Cowrim!

I the eyant that the Groop shares profits depending on the operating results of the BCC and
the Group has the rlght to jointly controls the BCC with the other parties participating in the
BCC, the Group applies the BCC avcaunting methed for revenue and expangas as slipufatad
in Clreular 20002014 TT-BTC issusd by the Ministry of Finance on 22 December 2044,
Accordingly, in this ¢ase, the Group will Fecegnize revenue and expenses in he consolidated
income statarment acoerding o its progaortion entlded a5 specifed in the BOC,

in case BCG distibutes profits after fax of the Group - the controlfing pay

In the event that the Group shares profits depending on the operating results of the BCC and
the Group controls the BCC, the Group shall recend the profits shared Lo the otheér parties
participating in the BCC in tha comsolidatad income statement according 1o their propocdion
entitled g specified in the BOC.,

Forelgn cinrancy oEnsactions
Tranzactions in currencies other than the Group’s reporting curency of YHD are recorded at

the actual transachon exchange rates al transaction dates which are detemmined as follows:

b Transactons resulting in receivaes are recomed at the buying exchangs rates of the
commencial banks deslonated b sollection;

»  Transactions resulliing in ligbiities are recorded at the ssling exchange rates of the
commercial banks designated for payment;

»  Payments for assets or expenses wihaut labllifles inldally being recognised is recorded
al the buying exchange ratas of the cormmarciat banks that process these payments,

At the end of the year, monetary balances denominated in forekn currencies are transiated
at the actuat ransaction exchatge rates at the consolicdated balangs: shect dates which are
determined as follows:

e Monetary asests ape translated at buying exchange rate of the sommersial hank wherz
the Group conducts ransactions regularky; and

#» Monstary liabilities are ranskatad at sslling axchangs rate of the commercial bank where
the Group conducts ransactions regularky.

All foreign exchange diffierences incurred ars taken to the consolidated incorme statameant,
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16

317

& 18

SUMMARY OF HGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (confinued}
Provisions
Gararal

Provisions ara racogrised whan e Group hes a present obligation {egal or consructive) as
a result of a past event, it is probabla that 2n outflow of resources embodying aconomic
benefitz will be required to =ette tha obligation and a relizble astimate can ba made of the
amount of tha abdigation,

Yihen the Groug expects sorme of all of & provision to be reimbursed, foF exarple under an
insuranca contrack, the reimbursamant is mcognised as a separata assat bul onky whan the
raimbursement is virually certzin. Tha expense rakating to any provision is prasanted in tha
consalidatad income statemant nat of any reimbursemeant.

If tha effect of the tima valya of money is mabenal, provisions ara discountad using a cyrrant
pre-tax rate that refects. where approprate, the nsks specific b the liahility. YWhemne
discounting ks used, the increass it ha provisian dus 1o the passadges of bime B rosghlsed &5
a finance sxpensa.

errramy

The Grouvp astimates warrmanty contingancy basad on axisting inforration about rapairmant
of properties and goods sold in the past,

Share capfal

Ardfinary shares

Ordinary shares gra racondad at its par valus upon igsuance.

Ehare premium

Share premium is the difference between the par vahre and the izsuance pricz of he shares,
minus the sctual expenses directly ralated to the issuance of the shares. after dadicting the
Irnpact of b
Approgriation of net groffis

Met profit after tax (exclding nagative goodwill arsing from 2 bargain purchase) |5 svailable
for spproprigion to shareholders aceording to the approval of the Gensral Mesting of
Sharcholders and after making appropristion o regerve funds in eceordance with the
Cornpaty's charter and Vieam's ragulatony reguireimeants,

The Group maintains the following reserve funds which e appropriated from tha Group's nat
profit as proposed by the Board of Directors and subject to approval by sharehnlders at the
annual general mesting.

Eonus and welfarne fnd

This fund is =8t aside for the purpose of pecuniary rewarding and encouraging, common
benefits and improvernent of the emplyees’ benefits, and presented a5 a bability on the
consclidated balance sheet,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

310

120

SUMMARY QF SIGHIFICANT ACCQUNTING POLCIES [continuad)
Advances fitw custoRMErs

Bownpayments reeeived from customers a3 deposits for the purchasza of raal astata
properties which do not meet the conditions of revanue recognition in current perod are
recagnized amd disckosed as "Advances flom customers” item in the liability section of the
consolidated balanoe shaet. Discounts under the promotion programs. which is accounied as
sale deduchion in sobsequent percd are recognised as 2 dedustion i “Advances from
customers® [t

Fayments received from customers, in the form of deposit contrackls are presented in the
"CHher payablas" ket in the lablity secfion onthe consdidated balanoe shest

Ravaniie racaogrfflon

Fevenue s retodhised o the extant that [t 15 probable that the esonamic banafits will flow to
lhe Group and he revende can be elizbly measured. Revenue s measured af the falr value
af the censideralon receiied o receivable, excluding trade diseount, rebate and sales rstarm.
The Edlxwing specifle rcogniben citerla must also b mel bafore ravenue ks recoghlsed:
Fevate from sate of real eslfale propodty

Revenue is recognized when significant risks and retums associated with the ownership of
the property iz ransferred from the seller to the buyer, usually vpon the mansker of the property
and recovery of transter price is reasonably ascertainsd,

If a transachon does not meet the above revenue recognition conditionz, progress pay ments
received from the cusiomer are ecorded =55 advanses rom custormers on the consolidated
balgnce sheet urtil a1 of the: above conditlons ars mel

Rendarng of senidces apd constrrciion conkract

YWihere the confract culbome can be reliably measured, revenue is recognised by reference
b the stage of completion. Where the conbract outcome cannot be reliably measured, revenue
is recognised only to the extent of the expenses recognised which are recaverable.

inferest inoome

Interest is mecgnizad on an accrual basis basad an the fme and ackual interest rate for each

periad.
Fantal inoome

Rental income arising frem opersbing lsases is charged to the sunsolidated incorne statement
o & straight-line basks over he |sase it

Chvidend ard prodil distabolion income

Dividerd and profit distribution income are recognized when the Group is entitled to receive
dividends ar when the Company are entitfad o receive profits from its capital contributions.
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MNCOTES TC THE CONSOLIDATED FINAHCIAL STATEMENTS (continuad}
asz at 31 Decembar 2024 and for the year than ended

.20

J.21

a.22

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCCUNTING FOLICIES (continued)
FRavanue recogniton (conBnued)
inceins from eapital fransfar aohilies

Income from capital ransfer activities is detamined as tha differance hetween the solling
prica and the cost prica of the transfermad capital, this income is recorded on the date of the
transaction, i.8. whan the tranzfar contract is axecubed.

Canstruction confract

Whers the outcome of g constuctlon contract can be estimated relably, revenue and costs
are retogilsed by reference b the skage of completion of the contract acbvity at the
aonsolldated balance sheat date, except whens this wauld not be representative of the stane
of complation. Varlations In contraet work, clalme and Incantive payments anz included to the
extent that they have been agreed with the custormer.

Where the autcome of a construction contract cannot ba estimated rellably, contract revenus
is recognised to tha extent of contract costs incumed that it is probable will be racowverabla.
Contract cozis are recognised as expenzes in the year in which they are incumed.

Chfference batwaen the cumulative revenue of @ constnichon contrast recogniesed b date and
the cumulative amount of progress bilings of that contract is presanted as construction
contract recaivallaipayabfie based on agresd progress billings in he consolidatad balance
sheat.

Taxetion
Crurrant fMCITE (X

Lurrent income tax assels and liabilibes fur be current and pelar years sre measured at the
amount expested 0 be recoversd from or paid to the teralon authaities. The tx rates ancd
tax laws used to computs the amount are those that are enacted as at the balance shest data.

Zurrent income tax s charged or credited 1o the consolidated inceme statement, excepl when
it relates to items recognised directly to equity, in which case the current income tax is also
dealt with in equity.

icurpent IMoams tax assels and labiltles are offset when there |5 a legally enforceatile aght
for the Group tor sat off cument tx assate against currant tan liabiliies and whan the Sraup
intends to 2attle itz cument tax agssts and liabilities on a net basis.

Deferred fax

Deferred B 15 provided using the llabllity method on ermporary diferences at the balance
sheet date between the tax base of sssets and liabilties and ther camying amount for financial
reparting puUrposes,

st = 2E5 2
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NOTES TO THE CONGOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued}
as at 31 Decembser 2024 and o the yaar then snded

3.22

SUMMARY OF StGEHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contlhued)
Taxathon (continued)
Dafarred 1gx (contineed)

Deferred tEx Habilltles are recognised for 3l BEeable emporary differences, except:

» wharm tha dafarred ko Mabilify arizes from the inlial recoqultion of an asset or Fability in
& fransaction which at the time of he related ransaction affects neither the acoounting
profit nor taxable profit or 023, and

» in raspect of taxable emporarlly differencss assosiled with investments n subsidiaries
and associates, and interests in joint vantures where timing of the reversal of the
temporary diffarence can bea contmlled and i is probakda that the emporary diference
will not reverse in the foresesable fiure.

Deferrad tax assets are re¢oqnlsad for alt deductible temporary differsnces, carried forward
unpsad rax cradi and unused tay 0sses, 10 the extent that it i probable that taable profit wil
be available against which deduchible tarmporary differances, canad farawarnd unused tax credit
and vnused lBx losses can be ubllised, except:

e whare e deferred a0 asset Inrespect of deductibhe emparary difference which anizes
from the initial recognition of an asset or [ability which at the tlme of the related
transaction, affects naithar the accounting profit nor taxable profit or Iose; and

* in respect of deductble temporarily diffierences associated with investments in
subsidlaties, assofiates, and interests i joint yentures, deferrsd tax oasets are
recognizad anly to the axtant that it iz probable that the temperary difersnces will raverse
in thie foreseeable fubure and teable profit will be availahke against which he temporasy
differences can be uttlized.

The camying ameount of deforrad tax assels is eviewsd o sach balance sheet dete and
reduced ta the extant that It 1s he kabger probable that sufficient BExakde proft will be available
1o allowy all or part of the defersd tax asset ko be Lltilised,

Freviously unreccgnised deferred tax assels are re<aszessed at each balancs shaat date and
are rasociised to the scert that it has become probable that future texable profit will allow
the defernod tax assets to be recoverad,

Cefarred tax assats and liabilities ara measurad at the tax ratas that are expested o apply In
the perod when the azsat is realized of the liability i= settled based on tax rates and tar laws
th=t have been enacted at the balance aheet date.

Dafarrad ta¢ iz charged or cradited to te consolidated income stalament, excapt when [t
refates to temns recognized directly to equity, in which casg the dafemad tax ke also deakt with
in the equity account,

Defyrad tax assets and liabiitkes are offset when there |s 3 legally enforceable right for the
Gro) p o oif-s21 curnent tax assets against currant ax lisbiltbes and when they relate ta incarms
taxas lavied by the same tavation aumthority on:

+ aithar tha zame taxable entity; or

* when the Group intends sither to setlle cument tax liabilites and assets on a net basis or
o realise the assets and sedtle the Hahiltles simaltzneously, Ineach fture pedod B wbkch
significant amounts of deferred tax Habilities or assets are expackd 10 be settled or
resavered,
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NOTES 7O THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as 2t 31 Decamber 2024 and for the year then andad

3.23

324

325

328

SLMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued}
Bongds fssued

Transaction costs are Alocated durng the lifetime of the bond foliowing straight line basis.
At initial recognition, issuancs costs are deducted from the liability component of the bond.

Sagmant fnfarmation

£ segment is a componant detemmined separately by the Group which ls engaged In prewiding
products or related services (business segment) or providing products or services in a
particular econamic envronment (geographical segment). that is subject to risks and relums
that are different from those of othar segmenis,

The business segment of the Group is mainly identfed besed on the sale of real estate
propertkes, construction services, leasing and other activities. The Company's managearent
datenrines that the gecgraphleal divislon of he Group is within the temitony of Yigmam.

Earnings par shara

Basic eamings par share amounts ane calculatad by dividing et proftf{loss) after lax for the
yaar atibutable to ordinary sharehaiders of the Group (after adjusiing for the bonus and
welfare fund) by the weighted 2verage nurnber of ordinary shares culstanding during the year.

Dlluted esrmings per shéare amounts @re cakulsted by dividing the net profit after tax
slibutable to ordinary equity holders of the Group (after adjusting for interast on the
convertible prefersnce shares) by the welghted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year plus the weighted avarage number of ordinany shams Fat would
be iwsued on conversion of all the diluthwe potentai ordinary sharas into ordinary shares.

Related parles

Partas are considersd to be relatad partias of the Group if one party has the ablity to comtral
the ofher pary or exarcise significant influence over the other parly in making finansial snd
tperating decisions, or when the Group and other party ara undar cemmen control or tnder
commen significant influence. Relalad parties can be anferprisa or individual, including clase
merribeers of their Families.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMEMTS {conlinuad)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

d.

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.0

SIGNIFICANT ACCILNSITION, HERGE TRANSACTIONS DURING THE YEAR
Establichment of Taseco Hed Phomg

According to Resofution of tha Company's Board of Direclors Ne, 14/2024MG-HDOT dated
t0 May 2024, the Company's Board of Directors approwvad tha dacizion o astaiish Taseco
Hai Fhong. Taseco Hai Fhong is a joint stock company estshlished under the Law on
Enterplse of Yistnam in purswat to the Enterpnise Repistration Certificate Mo, 0202243534
issued By the Department of Plannitg and Investment of Hal Phoog Sy on 28 May 2024 with
a registered charter capital of WND 20 bilien, of which the Company holds 50.5% equity
cmership.

Thee mmaln acbivitles of Taseco Hai Phong are investrrent, sonstruction and rading real estata.
Additfan of ownership and chartar capial reduction of Yen Binh Campany

According to Resolution of the Company's Board of Directors No, 18/2024N0-HDOT dated
1 Jyune 2024, the Company's Board of Dinegclows approved the decizion to aoquine 1,200,000
shares, equivalent to 10% of e aquity inferast in Yan Binh Company from a shareholder for
& consiteration of VN 12 3 hiilion. During tha year, the Cempany complated this transaction
and accordingly, the Company's cwnerzhip ratio in Yen Binh Company incraazed to 34%.

Dwuring tha yaar, Yen Binh Company reducad its chartar capital from YHD 120 bllicn to WD
10 billkon and retumed the conbribited capital o shareholders according to the onwnerzhip
ratl,

Acguisition of new essociate, Trang An Real Estaie Joint Stock Company (“Trang An
Companiy™)

According to Resalution of the IMCS Coampany's Board of Directors of Ho 182024 HQ-HDQT
dated 10 May 2024, the Boand of Dikestors of IMCS Company approved to acquire 240,000
shares, equivalent to 20% of the charter capital, of Trang A Company from Taseco Group,
for a consideration of WND 264 billion. Duting the year, IMCS Company completed the
acquisiion. accordingly Trarg An became an associgte of the Groop.

Dlsposal of NHT Global Comipahy

{in 22 March 2024, ICON4 Compsny, a subsidiary completed the disposal of 2l 767,500
gharas of NHT Global Company e an hdividual parier for = consideration of YO
T,575,000,000, accordingly, NHT Global Company s na longer a subsidiary of the Group.

Lisscittion of Hal Aa Trading Jofnf Sfock Company ("Hal Aa Company®), an associate

Accarding to the Bezcdution of Company's Board of Directars N 214/2024M0O-HBOT datad
8 July 2024, the Company'= Board of Directors approved to dizsolve Hzi Ha Company, an
assoclate, Dunng the year, the Company complated this dissolution, accordingly, Hai Ha
Company ks nd onger an assoizke of the Group.

Disposal of TAM Company

Acoording to Resolution of the Company's Board of Directors No, 282023/NO-HDAT dated
27 April 2023, the Compamy™s the Board of Direcltors approved the decision to fansfer all
shares held by the Company in TAH Company to 8 sorporate parner. Dunng 2024, the
Company implemented the above Resollion and compketed the wanskr transaction of
61,000,000 shares for g totsl consideration of approximataly YWD 847 billion, sccordingby,
TAH Company is 0 longer a subsidiary of the Company,

=4
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued}
a3 at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended
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4.8

EIGNIFICANT ACQUISITION, MERGE TRAMEACTIONS DLIRING THE YEAR {contlinued}
Dispasal of West Lake Yiew Company

Acoording to Resolution Mo, 37/2024/NG-HDQT dated 29 Navember 2024 of the Company's
Board of Dlrectors, Board of Directors spproved the dacision bo ransfer all sharas of West
Lake View Company 1o a corporate partner for 2 fotal considaration of YND 1,412 billkon,
Duwing 2024, Taseco Ihvest Company completed the transfer, accordingly, Wast Lake Wiew
Company s no kenger 3 subsldiary of the Company.

Compietion of provislonal accountiog for the acguisition of Tasech Da Nang Campany

I Nowember 2023, the Groarp completed the ssquisition of B59% ownership interest in Tazeco
Da Wang Company for a consideration of YHD 52,043 878 266 and applled provisionzl
accounting to record the business combination in the consalidzted financal statsmants for
Uz year ended 31 Degamber 2023,

In 2024, the Group completed provisional accounting for the acquisition of Tasaco Da Mang
Company with adjustments made compared to the previously detarmined provigional fir
value, which were rebmospectively adjusted as follows:

Currenioy, WIND
Prozional fal Arlistarent Adjusted fair
valie detarmined value
at acqiiERion date
Asgeta
Cazh and cazh
equivalants 56, 310,806,088 - BB 3T0,B0S 0BG
Short-temr trade
recaivables 110,463 475 - 110,463 476
Irantoies B, 307.797 - &Y,.307. 77
Other cumant assats 15,583,321 - 15,683 321
Tangible fixed assats 70,089 359 851 - FLOBS 3559 BHY
IntEngkde Fxed assels - 278,400 051, 611 273 499 061,611
COther non-cument as=ets 361849 740 952 - 36,188, 745 05%
162 783,270 483 278,485 061 11 441,282 341,004
Liabilities
Fayables to employees 52,566 812 - ko BAE B12
Statutary obligetions §3.115,146 - 63,119,146
CHhar shart-tam rade
payabfes 55614879503 - E8.514 873 503
Deferred kax lihilities - 55,600,812 322  B5.E99.312,327
Loanz o8, BA8. 223, 06 - 258 888 23 060
Total net assets at the
book valus {155,935, 500, 034} 222 709,249 260  66,863,740,251
Mon-gontralling nlerssts (G2, 37 4.203.615] 89,119 699,739 26 745 456,100
Gacdwill arising an
I TR el 145 605, 154 689 (133672540674) 11,920 835115
Total purchase

consldaratlon transfer

— 043,375,268
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HOTES T THE CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
g% at 31 Becember 2024 and for e yaar than anded

g

CASH AME CASH EQUIVALENTS

Currency VNG

Ending balance Baginning balance

Cash on hand 2580872624 2419215279
Cash at banks 135,719 067 861 735000 072 035
Cash in transit 7,719,328 237,038 337
Cash equivalents ™) 7 580450 348 213 275281377
TOTAL 450, 707,110,201 EEEIIIEEIEHIHEB

"} Cash equivalents as at 31 Dacember 2024 mainly comprise gold with a valee of YN
115,080,0 and deposits in WND at commercial banks with tarm lass than three manths
and aarning intarest rates renging from 4.0% b 4, 75% per annum {28 at 31 December
2023 from 2.3% 10 3.75% par annurm).

—ertzin e deposils with total value of WYND S0 billicn are used as collateral for lcans of the
Groug at comrrertial banks as disclosad in Note 25,

Cash at banks and cash equivalents az at 31 Decambar 2024 incheda the maintenancs fund
of the Alacare Ha Long Multipurposed Commercizl Service and Aparment Building project
(“41 C Ha Long Project’). Thesa maginmenance funds will ba ransfarred 1o tha Byilding
Managemant Board.

HELD-TC-MATURITY INVESTMENTS

Currancy: YD
Ending balance Begirning balance

Cost Canying valse oSt Carrying value

Term
deposits 113, 280,000 Q0d 113, 280 400 000 77921 0 Q0 U B2 O QO

TOTAL 113,260,000.000  413.280.000.000 _ 77.921,000.000 T7.821.,000,000

Term depozits g5 2t 31 Decamber 2024 thelude depeeits in YHD at commergial batks with
rernaining term of lees than 12 months, 2aming interest rates ranging from 2.9% to 5.6% per
annum (=25 at 31 Cecember 2023; 3.7% to 7.2% per annumy), in which:

«  Tem depositz of WHD 7.6 billion are used to securs for the mmplementation wamanty
ohligation for tha Mo, 4 projest In Thaoh Hea Mew Lrban Ares (o d Thanh Hoa Project’)
and the Housing project of resettliement area in Hai Yen commene, Nguyen Binh ward,
Mghl Sen town, Thanh Hoa provines {“Hai Yen Projact”); and

- Cersin term depesits at commencial banks with total value of YWD 55.5 billion are used
83 collateral for Inans of the Group 23 disclosed in Mote 25.

Term deposits as at 31 December 2024 include the maintenance fund of the ALC Ha Long
Praject These maintenance funds will be transfermed to the Building Management Baard.
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MOTES TO THE CONSOLIOATED FINAMTIAL STATEMENTS (corinuad)
as at 31 December 2824 znd far the year then ended

T

1

Shat-term trade recefvables

Feceivalies from sale of invantory properties
Receivakies from provision of constructon
sarvices (i)

Feceivables of mansfering shares
Feceivables from other activibies

TOTAL

I witfeh:
Shor-tarm racenabies fom affer cirstamers
Short-tenm recensaiteas Tom rafaled parties
{Mota 35)

Deteis of customers wilhh bafances over T0%:
Van Thanh Constraction invesiment Co., Lid
Wetrant Investmeant Limied (R, £1, R2)
Samcons Vet Mam Constriclion and
rvesfiment S50

Provisicn for doubtful receivables

BO3-DNHN

SHORT-TERM TRADE RECEINABLES AND SHORT-TERM ADVANCES TO SUPPLIERS

Crrrene) WG

Ending Dafamoe  Saginning balance

20%.020,384,137

754,993 109,019

152,295, 743,121 88,021,955 381
143,485 673 634 -
8177358002 29456 490 735
506,989.158,884  B72.511,576,038
577397 458 871 713488 368,521
10597, 702,028 150,023 207,518

105 568,531,344
B4, 7E1,054 700

J7, 504, 530 600

(12,080,308,011)

51083 362, 508

T7E. S04, B35, 600

(8,804,915,740)

(i} As at 31 Decewnbear 2024, recan/ables right arising from Construction contract at KN Paradiss
Resort and Entertainmant Complex betweaan the Group and the third party is used as
collztarals for the Greup's boans as disclosed in Mote 25, F.28hor-term edvances io

suppiiers

Sameons Yiet Mam Construchon and Inveshmeant
JEC

Fecon Infrastrusture Construction Joint Stock:
Company

Hamwl Constuctlon Carporathen

Thanh Hoa Land Fund Developmeant Centar (i)
Cither short-tarm advancas to srppliars

TOTAL

Prewizion for doshifl advances to suppllaes

Crrmaneys Y

Encling halance Beginaing balance

59,000, 739.7B9 38,045,597 B17
£1,043 206 628 -
67,23 254,257 103,223 202 808
27,840,441 704 27,840,441, 704
127 556,453,088 139508, 155 934
362,774 175,598  3DA 617,720 354
(15,000,000} (15, 08K, H00)

{I] This raprasaents advances for compensation and site clearance expensas of No.4 Thanh

Hoa Project. according to westment
13MTPTADR2MZUHODTDA.

project

implementation contract HMo.

1=



Taseco Land Investment Joint Stock Company BOA-DN/HN

MOTES TO THE COMSOLIDATED FIMNANCIAL STATEMENTS {contintad)
as at 31 Dacamber 2024 and for the year then ended

LOAN RECEIVABLES
Currency: VD
Ending baiance  Seginang batamog
Short-term
Short-tarm loan receivablas from othars £, S0, Q00,00 a6 G0, 0040, 000
KRarh Thien Trading Ca., LI (i} 49, O DOLL, GO0 A0 D00 GO, 0D fﬁ
Fiverview Lucrg Son Co., Lid (i) 16, 348 D2 (8 - —u
Loans o individuals - 11,874,000,000 7T
Shor-lerm loan receivables from relgted partiss Wi
{iata 35) 75, 700 (3, 000 LA, A0, 000 XC
TOTAL 141 040,600,000  117,575,600,000 YAl
Long-term _ﬁr'-:
Loan receivables from others 100,000,000 - —
Wezl Lake View Company TO0 O, B30 -
Short-tarm ivan recaivables fmm relaied partiss
{iWote 35) 128,000 _0:0d0, Q00 831157 120,000
TOTAL 128, 160,0{0,000 B31,157,120,000

{iy Thig is a shor-term Ioan with an intarest rate of 4.5% par annum, pingipal and inkeresl are
pail at matudty on 31 Dacamber 2025 with collateral assete of 5,543, 334 ghares of
Fackaging Company held by a major shareholder of the bommower.

(i} This is an unsecured short-tern koan with inkerest mtes ranging from 7.0% to 10.5% per
annum, princlpal and Intersst are pald st maturity from 15 February 2025 w8 Aug kst 2025,

OTHER RECEIVAELES
Cumency: VIND
Ending halance  Beginring balfance
Short-tarm
Interest receivables 130,760, 726 063 19,745,522 130
Deposit for real estate transferring 127 000, D00 D -
Arlvanee b amphoysas 20505461 423 2 AT4.035. 415
Capital contributicn for projact implementation 13,090,811,418 13,000,911,418
Others shot-tarm recaivabkas 22 065 321,003 13,876,775 608
TOTFAL 313,512,920,002 68,986,292 465
It wiltich:
Other short-lenm receivebles from others 168,374, 063,613 55,482 256 058
Other shor-farm recelvablies from refated
prenties (Mobs 35) 124, 133,855,359 12,404, 0136, 207



Taseco Land Investment Joint Stock Company

MOTES TO THE CONGOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

as at 31 Decermnber 2024 and for the vear then ended

.

10,

DTHER RECENVABLES (continued}

Long-term

Land claarance compansation costs (i)
Deposit, contract guarantees
Long-temmn interest receivables

Capital contributien for investments in real

estate projects

Cther lomg-term recervables

TOTAL
I wineR:

{ther long-tErm receivahies v others
Cthar feno-lerm receiables from relafed

parties (Mote 35}

Prowvision for doubtful other receivables

Ending bafamce

A61,588, 179,000
19,7384 053,800
11,358, 510,B67

B09-DkRHN

Currarey: VNG
Beginning balance

18,899,653 800
185,175,687 114

6 860, 526, 064 11,633,508 966
5,300,000,000 B 408 717
506,191,070,723  218,717,740,507

484, 533, 358, 765
11,358 610 857

{14,2%1,153,BOOY

185 184, 185,831
31,633,562, 766

(14 261,153,800)

i) This |z recelvable related b compensation and site clegrance costs thet the Sroup has
paid according e the Dodisions of the Paople’s Committes of Ha Nam province for the
Cong Van Il Supporting Indusirial Park Projact and the New Urban Area Projesct In the
southern cenfer of Duy Tien Town, Ha Nam Province.

BAD DEETS

Entily

Wietnarm Natlonal
Coal and Minaral
Indestries Group
Incico Inkastruckrs
Construchion
Imvestrent JSC
Other shart-term
receivables

TOTAL

Cumency: YND

Ending balance Elsginn.ing balance
Fecomerable Fecoverahla
Cosgt gt Cost amodrnt
17 304,382 57 - A7 .205 g BR7 -
2. TE,206 302 - 2,753,208 302 -
g 312.890 952 - 4037 500631 -
_26,271,485 411 - 24,096,069, 540 -

E’-’-‘.’jfdﬁjﬂ

= =
=
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Taseco Land Investment Joini Stock Company

BOZ-DN/HN

NOTES T THE CONSOLIDATED FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS (continwad)
a5 ak 31 [ecembar 2024 and for the year then endad

11.

12.

INYENTORIES

nerk in process — Resl
eskats antlvibes
Mo, 4 Tharh Hoa Profect
Lory Stan Vet Hung
MHigf-tize Fasideniial
Area Froject
Hef Yen Froject
Marn Thal, Thal Miirran
commsrcial, santos and
Mixed-Use compex
Froject
Southeast Housimg
Groitp Frofect on To Hur
atresf
New Urban Area Project
Sty of Dy Tean Town
Administraiive Cenfar -
Ha Mam
BI-CC24 Stanake
COrmpoent Praject
Campleled raal astata
proparties
ALC Ha Lomng Froject
- T Dinlomatic
Covrweay Profect
Filandaw Lirong Son
Froject
York In prooess —
Canstruction sclivities
Cihers

TCTAL

Ending balance

Cost Provision

3,902,898, 707 064
1,596,401, 127, 362

8532, 262 103,775
836,616,362, 091

447, 320,240,643

373 413,635 162

41,588, 244037

134 100, 340 827

Currarnc)y: YND

Eaginiing baalarnre

Cosl Provision

3472852 184 818
1,754,474, 352415

612 375,830,076

32 008,157,212

f23 882,700,114

203282 721,418

88,750, 507,74 - 152.079,515.749 -
22,502, 303,615 - 134,615 808,552 -
12,657,520.338 - 16.637,506,118 -

B,750,603,953 - 55927487525 -
5,362.650,674 - 7.035,063,529 -
4078,812,402,7T18 ~ 3,B40,997,437,201 -

As at 31 December 2024, property rghts arise fromiralated fo Long Biean Yiat Hung High-rize
Rezidential Area Froject, No. 4 Thanh Hoa Project, Hai Yen Project and Mam Thai, Thai
Mouyan commercial, zervice and mixed-use complex Project and Constructon confract for
KM Faradise resort and entertainment complax projent are used as caollaterals for the Group's
kans as prasentaed in Mole 25,

LONG-TERM PREPAID EXPENSES

Prepzid and rental fea [*}
Tools and eguipment
Fived assot overhaul
CHfwars

TOTAL

Currarcy: VAD

Erwiing bafatcs Baginning bafancs
35,151 570, 43 B4n 521,063
23,402 782,783 23,589 258 194
5,082 950,066 €.045 551,720
6,243 525 845 12,752 233 187
SR 380 836, 204 Og,282 964,159

") This is prepaid Yand rental fee for 50 vears of the Pulshra Resort Prcject acganding o the
Land Lease Contracts and Land Transfer Decision,

a5

e
f
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Taseco Land Investment Joint Stock Company

MOTES TO THE CONSOUIDATED FINANCEAL STATEMENTS {continuad)
az @t 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

16,

18.

INVESTMENT PROFPERTIES

Cost:

Baginning balanca.

- Reclassification
Emding balance

Accumillated depreciation:

Baginning batanca
= Deprecialion for the year

= Feclazsification

Ending balance

Met camrying amount:
Baginning balancea

Emnding balance

BOE-OHNIHMN
Ciurrancy: WD
Euilhings and Land use rgirz Total
struciines
385,082, 150 918 T.051 506267 392 B22.837.185
{85 455,439 4,455,439 -
385 002 625 480 7621 141,706 3M2 823,837,185
54 508 985, 753 2,453 456 574 61,863,452 327
11,668,390, 654 236,645 347 11,805,226, 026
(385,055, 798) 356,050, 758 -
70802 316 633 o, 076,251,714 73,768,678, 303
J25, 582, 165, 168 5070210633 330,860 354 859
a314,310,378,B41 4,544 770 992 318 BE5E. 158,533

Az at 3 Decernber 2024, cadain leased flogrs and tunnel sres are used as collaterals for the
Group's koans as dieciosad in Note 25,

As gt 31 December 2024, the Group does not present fair value of investment propertias
because sufficient information has not k=en collected bo evaluate fair value of theze assets.

CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

B3-CC2-B Stardzke component Project
Taseco Cuang Binh Resort and Services

Proxject

Lakeview Tower Project

Dang Van [H Supporting Indusirial Park Project

— Ha Mam

B20C4 West of West Laks Project

Others
TOTAL

Cumangy’ YD

Ending balance  Beginning halance
B3T, 325 035,520 2 042 41,3082
265,713 767016 203,640,220.914
110,178 M2 685 140,126 412 085
195,785,644 430 21,793,040 354
- BI2851 438976

B 833 58 035 OY.S00 748 007

1,181, 7&7 834,085

1,629,457 610,815

Asoat 31 Deaamber 2024, cerldin projacts are used as collaterals fur the Group's [sans as

dischsed in Mote 25,

34



Taseco tand Investment Joint Stock Company BO3-DN/HM

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMEMTS [continued)
as at 31 Decamber 2024 and for the year then emded

17.

18.

8.7

CAPITALISED BORROWING COETS
During fhea yrear, tha Group had capitaiized bomrowing costs with the tolal amountof WD 1097

billion {(2023: WHND 118 billion). These bomowing costs directly rafatad 1o Ioans for invastmeants
in the real eztate projects of fhe Group.

LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS

CitmancyT Wi

u ) Ending batance  Beginming balzrce

Irestment in associates 181 2.805935,007 TB73.E20 132
irvestment in other entilies 18.2 40,154,500, L0 45274 B0G,000
TOTAL d42.800,535,507 §2,05%,420,152
Frovision for longdemm investments (52490, 003 4509 {7,590 952 794

Imrastmant in associatas

Equity inferest alzg voting

tighis (%)

Erincipls Ending Boginming
Entily name achivities Registered address balEfce batahas
Trang An Fent, operate, 15t floor, building B3, 20 -
Cormpany tranage non- - Thang Long international

residential villaga, Dich Vong ward,

houses and  Cau Gigy disirict, Hanaoi

lmnd ity
g:nl::w Resl estate Lot G40, Zone 1. New . a5

investmant  Lrban Area North of Le

amnd businass  Loi Avenus, Bong Huonp
¥iard, Thanh Hoa City,
Thanh Hoa Province

Invectment and  Praviding N 2434 Da La Thaoh, - 30
Construction specializad  Lang Thuong Ward,

JEC No. 4.2 construction Dong Da District, Hanoi

("Company 42" services

34
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Taseco Land Investrment Joint Stock Company

MOTES TO THE CONSOUDATED FINAMGCEAEL STATEMENTS {conlinued)

as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

23,

LONG-TERM UNEARNED REVENUE

Leasing and property management 2Ervices

TAOTAL

OTHER PAYABLES

Short-term
htalntenancea fund (i}
Intarest sxpeanses payabla
Creposit for project implementzation
Peayables for contract's iquidation
Cividend, profit payables
Capital contribution recelved and profit
diztribution for reai astata projacts (i}
Ceposits for share purchase
Others

TOTAL

i witioh;
Payables fo ralated pamias (Nole 35)
Pavablas ta efher parilas

Long-term
Capital conbibution receved for
invastmants in real estste projacts (i)
(Hheers

TOTAL

I which:
Foyables to offrer partfes
Fayalblas t falatad paifias (Mete 35)

BOS-DN/HMN

Currancy: WhicH

Ending bafsrce  Beginning belance
25 373 445,063 20,442 197,141
25 575,445,063 29,442,187, 141
Currency: VHiD

Endimg balance  Esginning balance
65,752 263, 196 83,036,273, 858
10,199,687 545 45 68% 064,203
&7, 793,315,510 2,760,000 000
12,418, 765,068 25242 077,382
17,663,925 278 2,333,524 184
T, 089,653,211 197 133,677 157
- 728194833515

45 402,011,583 41 535, 01130

206,299,651,404  1,105877,451,698
105,076,708, 298 214,000 333, Fo4
204,200 802 406 891,877.117.905
126,547, 516,360  213,040,110,480
1,338, 160.000 1,562 BEA. 005
127 BA6,675, 360 &14,402, 766485
a0 348 254 801 78 864,307,421
47 538 427,559 135738374564

(i} This is tha maintarance fund that tha Group collects from customers who buy apartmants
of tha ALC Ha Loang Project and will be renzfemed to the Building Management Boar.

(i} This mainly perlmins o the capiil contribution and proft shared {if any) payable to
corporate or individual counterpanties under the businesa cooperabon conbracts in which
the Grodp Relds Sentral o inpernent certain projects of the Group. Lnder bhege corracls,
conbracting partles cormit to conribute capital i invest in the project, share profits
according to the capital contribution ratios and adhers o some specific conditions as

menticred in the contracts.,

44
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Taseco Land Investment Joint Stock Company BOS-DN/HN

HOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGEAL STATEMENTS (pontinued)
28 gt 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

8.

23.1

20.2

258.2

284

28.5

DWHERS" EQUITY {continued)

Irerease and decrease in owRers’ egaiy (comtinued)

(*1 During the yaar, the Company has complatad tha distibuticn of cazh dividends in the
amount of VMO 4455 billion according to the Resolution of the General Meating of
Sharshobfers Mo, DZ2024ME-DHDCE dated 25 April 2024 and the Resotution of the
Board of Directors Mo, 27T2024NO-HDOT dated 1% August 2024, in addion, some
subsidiarias have pak cash dividends frorm undistibubed affer-txs profits 2ecarding to the
Fazaolutions of the General Meating of Sharetolders of thess subshdlanes.

¥ Bonus and welfae Unds are allocated secording 1 Resoiutlan of the Seneral Meeting of
Bharaholders No. 02/2024!NQ-DHDCD dated 25 Aparil 2024,

Coniribfed charfer capits!
Ctlrreney, VD
Ending belfance Deglhning bafamne
Total Ordinany shares Tatal Crellrary shares
Teseop Graup 2,183,022 360,000 2153022 360000 2 1563022 360,000 2,183 022 360, (k)
CHher
sherahalders AGETT 00T B16.977 B0 000 B10.977 B0 000 15,377 840 0
TOTAL 2,370,000,000,000 2,870,000.000,000 2,5970,000,000,000 2,570,0:00,000,000
Capital trenzaciions with owners aod disiniwnion of dividends, profits
Cumency; VNG
Current waar Previous year
Corrtriirted capifitar
Beginning balanca 2, 700,000, 0y, Q00 2, 70,000,000, 000
Ending balance 2,700,000,000,000 2, 700,000,000,000
Stock dividends paid 445 50000, 000 248, GO0 008, 0D
Sharas
Ernting halance Degiming batance
Qurantity Cast (VD) Quantity Cast [VND}
Authorized shares 2T, 000,000 Z8T0000,000,000 297,000,000 2,370,000,000 000
Chwdinary sharas 2HT.000.000  Z9T0000000000 297,000,000 2,070,000 000,004
Shares in circulation 267,000 000 2 870,000,000000 297,000,000 2,570 000,000 000
Crdinary shares 207 000000 2970000000000 207 000,000 2,970,000, (e300, D

Far valua of cutstanding shane: WO 0,000 per share (3% Decambar 2023; YO0, KD per
shame).

Dividends
Currancy: YD
Currenf year FrevTous Fear
Dividends declarsd and pald durdng the yaar
Dividands on ordinary shares 445 500 000, G600 324, 000, THx O}
Stock dividends dectared in 2023 WHD 1,500
per shiare (in 2022, YHD 200 per shans) 45, 5000 D00, DO 54,000, 000,000
Caeh dividends declared in 2022 0 shara per
10 axisting shares {in 2022 1 share per 10
existing sharea) - ZFL006,000,000

a2

E
LY
[~
Bk
30



Taseco Land Investment Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATEDR FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
as at 31 December 2024 2nd for the year then ended

29,

28.7

29.2

an.

REEVENUE

Revanue from saka of goods and randering of services

Gross revanus

i which.
Fevenue from sale of real asfate propertias
Revenye from provision of constichion
SRMSS
Favanue from oflar sernvices

Mat reventig

1 wirich:
Fevenue v other enlities
Feverue from related parties
(Note 35)

Current year
1,604,455, 453 400
1,117,705, F27 408

338,335,825,245
327 221 800, TG

BrG-CHN I H

CurrancyT WD
Frevious year

3,237 612,280,032

L H9H. 312 274 910G

OB 217 831,716
220,002 QB3, 120

1,684,453,453 400

3,237,612,289,032

1,472, 235,004,435

292 215, 448 D55

3080, 0 7,048,577

157,565, 742,515

Revente from construction cantracts recognlsed durlng the year and curmulative revenue of

n-going construcion contracts ane as folbows:

Revanua recognised during the year of
campdated constmiction contracts

Revenue recognised duning the year of on-
qolng construction contracts

TOTAL

Cumalathve revanue of odfrgolng conslruction
conbracts recognised up to end of year

Finanecs Incoma

Interast income
Interest from the transfer of investments

Othars
TOTAL

Current yaar

2 554 149 585

3365 675,560

Currency: VD
Frovicnts yaar

305,217,931.716

315,315,425,245

309,217,931,716

B46, 804, 500,554

798,100,077 972

COST OF GOODS SOLD AND SERVCES RENDERED

Cost of gale of reat estate properties
Cost of provizion of construchon services
Others

TOTAL

Ciurrrency, YD

CLirmant waar Froviors yoar

35 585 0682073 B2, 771, 716,548
333,905 927,064 -
2,307 951,243 2,337, 110,000
821,847 560,378 35,108,326,849
Curancy, Yo

(ZLirTEntE e Frevinus year
T46,504 866 461 1,873,548 005,019
an4 514 897 0327 276,009 578,138
213,505, 700,135 197,8595.559,831
1,.264,525,563,823 2,347451,345,868

VinE S EI



Taseco Land Investment Joint Stock Company

NCTES TS THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {tontinued)

as at 31 Decembar 2024 and for the year then ended

. FINANCE EXFEN3ES

[terest expenses

Foreign exchangs osses

Profit shanmg under business cooperation
contract

Bohd issuance costs

Rever=al of provision for l0es of financizl
ivestmentz

Loss from transfeming inveshment

(Hhers

TOTAL

BOA-ONHMN

fourreneyT WD

Ctrent yeor Freovigs yoar

171 8B4 525 348 75,879,130, 121
21,384 3523 B35 18,447, 175,629
6 658,885 092 -
1,680,086, 940 -
(520,073,344} -
£5.652, 508 4 500,000, 000
140.540 124 386,443 34%
201,173,971,651 99.212,749,09%

3. SELLING EXPENSES AND GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Selling expenses
Brokerage expenses and other salling
axpancas for real estate projects
Labor costs
Expangas for extemal sanices
DOthers

TOTAL

General and administrative expenses
Lahar costs
Prewlelon for daubtiyl debts
Brapreciation and allocation of goodwill
Expengses for external services
Datation, sponsorship axpensas
Dthers

TOTAL

3. QPERATING AND PROTRICTION COSTE

Costs of developing reat estate proparties for
sale

Construction service expenses

Marterizl sosts

Dapraciation of fead assats, invastinant
proparties and amorization of goodwilt
Provisions

Donation, sponsorship expenses

Expensas for exlemal services

Cthers

TOTAL

ad

Currency: Vi

Current vear Frevious vear

44 958, 153, 586 73,398,056,892
3406 863 256 A,033,613 866
6,058 604 204 3,713,107 126
2,306 68 808 3,063,030 820
58.729,376,084 85,107,814, 704
72 304681, 702 1,712,843 048
2,275,360 271 T, 845 TES 180
28937 47F 510 16,026,342 051
30,030, 724,684 27,831,548 581
3,600, 0043,000 4, 165, 000 D00
58 541 804 923 48 518 836,817
196,830,088 070 178,200,959 677
Crrency: VR

Currant paar Frawoug ypedr
36,806 638 557 3,225,704, 324,907
210,801.330,554 274,450,085 316
T0337. 708 B3 B4, 145 147 401
£9 614,186 614 30,560,632 058
16,443, 316,333 10,783,634, 776
3,600,000,000 £.185,000 000
233.786.811,743 228.193,173,225
80,517 885,447 THQ24, 23% TTE
1,411,587, 882,146  3,042,180,747 582




Taseco Land Investmeant Joint Stock Company

BO9-DNHN

MOTES T2 THE COMNSOLIDATED FIMANCIAL STATEMEMTS (continiad)
as at 31 Decambar 2024 and for the year then ended

3d.

4.1

CORPORATE TMCOME TAX

The stattory corporate income tax ("CIT'} rate applicable to the Group is 20% of taable

The Ex returns filed by the Group are subiect ko examingiion by the BBx authonties. As tha
application of tax laws and regulations is susceptible to varying interpretations, the amounts
reported in the consolidated financial statements could change &t @ kater date upen final
determiration by the tax authoriies.

T axponses
Cirraney Wi
Ciurrent year Previous yaar
Current tax expense 184, 701,835,608 151,584 740 384
Defered tax {incomealExpenss ~ 4188, 228 8993 3065030601
TOTAL . 180,513,606,616  164,649,810,935

Feconctiation betwean CIT expenzas and the accounting profit befora tax multiplied by C1T
rate iz prasentad below:

Comancy. VYR
Crirmant yoar Pravious yaar
Arccounting prafit bafore tBx ST5B13,856 458  €27.3356 190,502

At CIT rata of 20%

Adivsinants:
Unrecognized deferad tax assels related to bBx
losses
Effect of ad|ustments for conzclidated financial

175,422 714,292

13,765,103, 256

125.457,038 182

21,210,399,586

skatemenls
Adjusbnent of CIT according to Dacresa Mo.
1322020/ND-CP and Decree No. 92:2021/ND-

{56,453, 574) -

CF & 605 237 268 4 263 58T 540

Goodwitl alluesskon 1,242 799,137 054 038,957

Profit sharng under businass cooperation

contract 1,331, 777,016 -

Mon-deductibble sxpersss 5,470,500k 184 28Tt 418 T24

Tax fpse camed forward _ 12459 488 238) 127,242 40%
GIT expense . 180,513,606.516  154,649,8310,935
Corrent fax

Fhe gureanl GIT payabls is based on taxable inceras for the coment yaar. The taxable incoema
of the Group for the year differs from the profit as reparted in the consdlidated income
statement becausze it excludes tems of Income or expense that are faxable or dedustible in
other years and it further excludes itemz that are not temable of dedochble, The Group's
liahility for cumant ta is calcubated ositg ta rates that have been enacted by the consaldated
batance shaet date,



VENEE A

g%
(LS DEeSees) EBBEEZ 8L
{BLZELEGITF2L) (S20°TIEGTE2EL)
0.6 G068 946 ISt e 8 6L {gzrhod' L vabl) (L' o2 'eRL)
arE'aay L0612 201906602
- (OLL'0ES 21T} CLLOEQALE -
{;9l'P10'5Ze' L) #11'39Z'910°L ZLE'SRO'TLE QLE'PLE'AZE b
{2ze'opb' L0R'S) - - -
{85 210D e T Q) 303 L5LEFLP bZR' PR EEE E
LE e 315 L BT EES PGS SHA'GPR'NS0'E EE0'SL5509'S
ErP'IFLELER 08l arg'gLs LBO'SOL 99 L TES'TLL LR 2L
(BTR L08'EA8) ez ae'agL) BL5'F20'508 EGZ'GRA'5./G
ABSS SAmAGS Joad Juannsy (D8 saN b snered Fupus
aadefeg Sududag

JUBLLEIETS SULDSU] PEIEAOSUE

g Aauenng

NH/NGO60E

JEEYE SOUEE] DS ECNOSUO)

MIBUSEIE BIIGTI
PRIBPHOSUDS 813 0} (8BIBYINNPRIS XB} PRAIGIAD JON

SRl KO} PlaeR JoN

®Ep
uOf|S ke 1B SR pISgns (O SHREsR 1Rl O anea eg

SOlIIGE) X Dedieyag]
SIBESE XE] DOIIGIBD 18N

BRLUIO

PasEea) sLARdUMOD K0} | |7 BUTISInCId
salLLISi O

gluslaeds Jene-fepUBy I 85 Jasfeuew) panioey
sasuaine poddns [saisu) panissy

SISIOISNG 0] JaA0 POPUEL SuBm

oiusn SE00e puey o Gunesd sesuadxe Bujjjes paruooy
SUOOEIU B [BUIENY

JO siodd pagEsun ¢ Bue) sousseup Arisdwa)
SISLULISND 2] 184D BRpUBY LSS JaA U

SAEU UM SESlE pUE| o Bunesd sasuadxs jSR0a)u)

SHOESE Xe] Podieied

HEak ahoaes PUR LIRS Ayl Bulnp ' unsmeLy] Sjusuascll 2U) pUE dnoun eu) Ag pestublozed B1es5E 1) pelleep e Bulne|ol Syl

XB] DRLGIRT  EPE

(PENUOUYS} X¥L INOOHI ALYHOSHOS ‘P

PEpUR LELY JIBES BY) 10) pUE $707 JE0U8Is LE I8 5B

(PENUUCE S LN NES LY 1S T9IONYHID Q3L I0EN0D 3HL OL 5310H

AURdWION 39015 JUIOM JUBLWIISEAU| PUBT 029SEe ]



Taseco Land Investmeant Joint Stock Company BOGS-DM/HM

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued}
as at 31 December 2024 and for the y2ar thien ended

34,

CORPORATE INCOME TAX {continued)

interest expenses axceeding the cafling according fo the provisions of Dacree
13 200WND-CFP

Agcording to the proviskons of Decree 132/2020MN0D-CR, the Group |5 allowed to ransfer the
interest expenses axceading daductible thashold in the curant, year fo offsel against taaahle
profts in the following five years from the year after the sxpansa is incumed. As at 31
Decambar 2034, the Group has a tofal un-deductible CIT interast expense of YHD
G4 286 474 026 wND {31 Dacembear 2023: 21,318,767 695 YHD) that can ba usad 10 offsat
against ffune taxable profits.

The Group and its subsidisries have not reccgnized deferred tax asset on theses interast
expensss because fiture taxable profit and their tax deduechibility cannot be relisbhy
determined at this stage.

Tax lnzsax carmad forwsrd

The Company and 8 subsidiarnss are entiled to carny . loss fommend o offset aganst
taxable income anising within fire years subsageent 1o the year In whish the loss was incuned,
As at 31 December 2024, the Company and its spbsidianias had accurmulabed tar peses of
WD 1007 billion available for offzet against future taxable profits (31 Decamber 2023 YMHD
106 4 billion). These are estimated tax kosses as per the CIT declaratons of Company and its
subsldiarles, which have not baen finalised by the ocal 1 authoritles as of the date of these
consolidated financial statermants.

The GSroup and e subsidiaries have not recognised deferned tax sssebs o the abowve unutilised
tax losses due i the uncartainty of fubure taxabla profit at this stage.

&7



Taseco Land Investment Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE GONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continusd)
as al: 31 December 2024 and for the yvear then ended

s

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

BOE-DMHN

Lizt of related paries with the Group Company =8 at 31 December 2024 iz discloead as

foHowings:

Relaled parties

Tasecd Group Joint Stock Comparmy (Taseco Group”®)

THT Phug Linh Joint Stock Company
Mr Pharn Ngoc Thanh

Redationzinip

Paremnt cormpany

Parent company leval 1
Crwnar of Parent company leval

Significant transactons with related parties during the surrent year atd previous yesr ans a5

brelenw.
Ralaied padins
Taseco Groug

Da Hang
Intemetional
Termmnal
rivastiTent ami
Oparation Jaint
Stack Company

vinaCs
Company

Waet Lake
Devaboprment
Compeny

Relatiorzhin

Farent
COmpany

Atfllzate

Affilinte of
pakart
CoMpEny

Cormon key
management
persoaeel

Tranzasfions
Divickered in cagh
Paymert for
HTveshent in real
eatale projecis
Lending collection
Eowrcavireg

Loan repayment
Indarsast recalvabla
Ehanng praft from
Wvestment in real
eEtale projects
Capital contribion
for imeastment in real
estale projects
Feyment for ehare
lransfer

Landing

Stock dividands

Interast paid

Bormowing
Loan rapay memt

Bormaving

Loxars rapaymet
Lending

Lending collection
Salas of real ashata
properles

Racgipt fom ealas of
raal aslate propartas
Lending interast
Interest payvable

Endimg talance

J&2 853 354,000
1897 182 677 157

G54, TS, 120,000
39,500,000, 000
31.000,000_000
21.856,9290,043

51098 406 207

3671, 200,000

16,8068 082,192

214, 100,000,000
204 020,000 00D
¥ OO, e, D
3, 00 A0
56554, TE7, T80

57,526, 507,300

2676634 B30
3,741, 165,206

Currancy: VAD
Begmning balance

37, 455,861,200
31,000,000,000

433,654, OO0, 000
159, 10, DO, 000
TE, A O, D0, 00 D
82,978,256 748
40,383,830, 1632

243,457 330,645

252 000, D00 000

357 550,000,000
167, 228,300,000

10, 500, T, DM
1001, S0, Do, RO

11, 200, DO, 00

25, TOHk, (KD, D
14, SO0 D00, D00
S8 BA5 30

£23,140,450

A1g

His
AN |
gy
N

pr



Taseco Land investment Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE COMNBOLIBATED FIMNAMCIAL STATEMENTS (continuad)
as at 31 Dacamber 2024 and for the year then ended

3s.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES [conkifned)

BOS-DMHH

Significant transaclions with retated parties during the current year and previous year sra as

below: (continuad)

FRelated pamies

THT Phuc Linh
Joint Stock
Company

VYngonates
Gompaty

TLI brwstment
Joit Siock
Compeany

Mr Mguyen Yan
Mgl

Br W Csoc
Huy

Mr Pharm Ngoc
Thanh

Mr B Wied
Thanh

Mz D3 Wan
Tramg

Mz Caa Thi Lan
Huang

FolatorsHr
Parent company

Close selallonship
with intimate

Camlly rrembey of
Chaiman of BCD

Deputy Gengral

Deputy General

Movrnbear of BOD

fieneral Direcior

Iintlmate fammly
membear of Yice

Caputy Sareeal

Tranmactions

Faceipt from aales of
real eslate propertles
Sales of reg| esigle
proparias

Interest payakle

Ravanus farr
renddenng of services
Loan repeymedt
Capitel cantribution
Tor Implementaton of
real eskte projacts

Salez of real estata
properties

Facsalpd Irom sales of
raal estate properiea
Borrowlng

Loan repaynnent
Interast payabla
Lancng

Eemnding colledion
Lending

Lending collection
Salas of real astata
propeflas

Lemdhnig

Lending callection
Sales of real astale
properies

Fecehpt from sales of
real aetale praparias

Loan mapayma
Salee of real estate
propertias

RPeceipt from saler of
raal estale propeles

Fecalpt from salas of
reak estale propartes
Eomawdng

Loan epayinent
Fecelpt from ransfer
af shamas

Gapliad contilbaublan
Sales of real estale
propertias

Recgipt from a5lee of
real astals proparles

Sales af rmal astals

Properies
Recalpt fromr salee of
reaf estate properlies

o8

Cotrrasncyt Wi

Endirg utamea  Bagirming balance

5,538, 0, D0

431, 704,001
340, 000, D00

1000, D00, DO

A0 0ET 041 420
48422 613, B0

BO2 202, 738

2,782 037 500

5,075.5408,302

£2,158 D00,000
14, Q00 OO0, D0
14, Q00,010,010

T 715,300,775

155,340,000
4,717 585,583

&, (0 0103, Q160

3.440.370,204]

41,236,411,251

THO,.084.927
577,500,000

1, CHRL G0, CHeY
21,1096, (10,000

0, GO, CHOME, D)
Fatl, CH, (RO, 0

55, 110,000 D00
35,110,000,000
1,368,363.637

28 =8 D00, o
285 DHH OOH)
Z.141.336, 354

15,000, D00, 000
11,647,142 494

6,021 600,00

10,575,000, (100
47 458 580 955

47,454,505 905
51,324 DEF 130

1,989 3897 1623

/B

L]

Vo =



Taseco Land Investmant Joint Siock Company

BOS-DNMHHN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 Decemnber 2024 and fon the yoar than endad

35.

TRAMSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES {continued)

Eipnificant transactions with related parties during the current year and previous year are as
Bzl {atrinlied)

Curremey: WG
Fciated
parfiag Fetationship Transacions Erding balance Beginmng Dalance
Ms Doan Thi Intmate famlly  Sakes of rea eslate £,950,354 027 10041, 371 802
Phuong Thaa of memberof  propodiss
Chairear Peceipd from zabes of 19,583, 500,000 2,000, 000 a0
real ealata proparties
Mr Pham Anh  Intemata family Sekas of raal aslata 625807 706,930 2,114,736,283
Tuzn member of properige
Chaimgr Racadm from sakas of 72,150,541 300 3,757,530 000
real egtate properties
s Ngunen Chief Selas of real asfats 8, 763,508,373 -
Thi Kim MNgan  acosuntant properles
Raceipt from ealas of 11,718 467,000 -
real eslate (roperties
Borrowing o3 CHOH (o (1 CHOY -
Loan repaymant 000,000,000 -
M= Tran Thi Head of Boad  Sales of real pataie - 10,401,043 ,274
Lean of Supervislon  propertas
Receipt from sales of real 6,252, 00, 00K o SO0, 010, G
aslata propastas
kAr Nguyen Minh Vice Chairman  Salas all mal estata 2,.007.151,843
Hai of the BOD properiies
Recalpt from sales of real 3541832 500 -
estate properies
ka Mguyen Do Inlimate member Sales of real eatate - 10,230,193 675
&rh Thu of BOD propertes
Pacaipt from aales of real £,0171.5582,600 2, CHRO_ KA, GO
eslate projrerties
Mr Mguyen Tran General Director Sales of real estate 3,228,630 1M
Tung cuam Member of propertiea
B Reacalpt frarm sales of raal 3875827 800 -
eslate properties

Terms and condibons of fransachions with related paries

The sales of assets to, manstEming of shams to, rendenng of services to and porchases of
sery|ues from related partles are made anthe basls of contract negoliation.

Buring the year, the Group bomowed from and lent to related parlies according to specific
agraarment on bomowing and lending, Thess bormwhegs and Ehdings 2 shsecursd sl sotled
I c=eeshh.

Cutstanding balances of receivabies and paybles at 31 December 2024 are unsecured, interest
free (except for loan reosivables and kBansy and will be settled in cash. For the year ended 31
Drasermber 2024, the Group has not medes any provislon for deubtful debts ralating to amoants
o by refated partles {31 Decamber 2023: nHl}. This assasemant is5 undertaken each fnanciz|
yegr throwgh the exammation of the financial position of the relsted party and the markest in
which the related party operates.




Taseco Land Investment Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE COMSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 21 Decamber 2024 and for the year then ended

33

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES (continued)

BOB-DMNMHH

Amounts due to and due from related parties az at consolidstad balance sheat datas wara as

Tolboow:

Fofakad
paies

Relstivnship

Frenraeptions

Shori-ferm frade recefvabies (Note 7.1)

West Lake
Denvalopnant

Carnpesty

M3 Mguysn
Dao Anh Thu

Mr Fham Anh

Tuan

TLI
Ifrestirent
Joinl Slaek
Company
s Cac Van
Trang

Mr Do Wiet
Thanh

Mr Wy Quoc
Huy

THT Phue:
Link Jaint
Stock
Cormpany
Fivarvhaw
Lucng Son
Company

iz Doan Thi

Fiuong Thao

g Tran Thi
Loan

Mr Phaimn
Mgoc Thanh
Mr Ngtyan
Tran Tumg

Mr Mauyen
KMinh Hal

Mg Cac Thi
Lan Huong

Mr NgLiyen
Yan Mghia

Orhers

Common key
rmanaganmant
parsnm

Halas of real estats
propatties
Pramlses rartal foa

Imbmate member of Sales of el astate

BOD

Intirmate Fmiky
member of
Lhairman

Checa ralabonship
with Intraba
rrewmiar of
Cheirtan af BOD
ntimate family
member of Vice
Chalmian
hMember of BOD
cum Beputy

tzeneral Director
Bepuly Dirssctar

Parsnk sapnpsiy
lewe] 1

Cofmimon ey
mEregamert
persornal untd 21
Jung 20624

Irtinnzte famiby of
member of
Chaimnan

Hemt af Board of
SURENFGHN
Chamnan
Mambsar of BOD
YVice Chaimman
Deputy CHractor
Deputy Director

thers

properlies
Sales of reat astate
properties

Zalas of real estate
[l 17

SRles of real estate
properties

Shars transter

Shars transfer

Salas of raal astate
properties

Froject
[ ENESET Ly
considtimg fae

Sales of real eskste
properties

Sales of real azlate
propartiss

Zalez of real estate
proparties

Sales of real estate
proprartias

Sales of real eotmie
propactias

Salze of mal mstaln
propertics

Sales of real estale
Mopertics

{Hher receivatle

&1

Ending
hafance

J.994. 028,700

3,308,447 500

2 956 560, 500

2,801,190,200

2,180,085,000
2,100,500,000

1,247 508,700

1,643 8773 423
19,531,702 923

Crmanzy WD

Beginmng
batanee

605 599,755
§,320,000,000

7 Dt 10,200

45,51 8,000,000

4. 030 447 200

39,536 Tk, Q00

16,130,356, 483

4,003, 300,000

8,932, (00,000
4,926,695,000
4,349,350,00
3,511,832 500
1,440, 570,200
2 516,582,500

1 836,542 075
154,025,207 518



Taseco Land Investment Joint Stock Company

BOS-DNHN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FIMAMCIAL STATEMENTS {sontinued)
as at 31 Decamber 2024 and for the year then anded

35,

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES {continued)

Amounts due to and due from related parties az st consclidated balance =haet datas were o=

follows [continued):

related

paries Refalionship

Transactiomns

Other shart-tarm racelvablas (Mota 9)

Taseasn Group . Pamnt sompany

Vursl Lake Conmion key

Cevelopmant  managemsnt

Company parscairal

TLi Investment  Close

Jolnt Stock refaticnship with

Company Intimate marbar
of Chaimman of
BOD

Ryeryleyy Cammarn key

Luong Son ranagemant

Corpamy perzonnel until
21 June 2024

Mr. Bui Xu=zn Ozputy Semeral

Yiuong Diractor

M. Pharm Chairman

Mgoc Thanh

Others related  Qthers related

partias partias

{Qthar fong-term raceivables (Note
Tazeco Group  Parent company

Shart-term payeblas (Mota 20}

Tasesn A llate:
Qoeanview

Tazaro Meadia  Affiliata
Taseco Airs Adfiliate
Others Afhliata

[Frterest
retefrable
Interast
receivzhble

Fassipt on
hahalf

Interest
racaivabla
Cther receivable

Advanne
Maintenanca fee

Others

=H
Interest
receivabie

Purchasge of
SEMViCa
Purchase of
BEVICE
Purchase of
SErvce
Others

Currency: YIND

Ending Beginning
batance batance

118 G 088 755 10,324,0685,671
3 EE2, A5 20 258,335,611
2,806,102, 749 -
- 923,859,452

- 110,002, 500

464,815, GA0 454 416 68%

- 336 198 182

- 1,036,754,911

124,136,856,385 13,494,036,207

11,358,510,957 185,184,185,831

11,385,610.857F 185,184, 185,831

B2,050,000 -
23084000 161,152,640
8,175,000 A} s, TG

- 111,340,820
82208000 313,133,160




Taseco Land Investment Joint Stock Company

BOS-DIN/HMN

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINARCLA STATEMENTS {sontnued)
gz gt 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

5.

TRANSACTEONS WITH RELATED PARTIES {continuecd)

Amourds due to and due from related parties as at consolidated halance shest dates wars as

folbows {confinued):

Fofated partfer Relationsfip Trasactons

Oifrar short-tarn? payabies [Mote 24)

infest Lake Commoh key Interest payable

Devebspment Mgt

Comnparny peraonnel

Vinconstec Investee Interest payable

Company

Tasend Broup Parant Capital

COompany conlribution for

project
implementation
costs

Cra Mang Affiliate Interest paysbie

| mternaticral

Tearrmina)

Investment and

Operation Joint

Stock Company

Cither Cther Cthers

ingdividuals individuals

Other fong-tenn payables (Note 24)

Taeseco Group Farent
CoOmpany

Mr. Doan Dy Infimiate fanify

Chinh rrembear with
BiOD

Mr. B kManh Infirnate family

Cuong member with
BOD

Capitai
conlribution for
projact
impkementation
o5t

Capital
contribution for
project
implernentatlan
cozls

Capital
conirbuton for
project
irmpdementetlon
cnsts

Cutrarey Whilh

Etcltir Bt
bafanca bafarce

3,942 137777 -
1,064, BES, O3 -

100,069 663,213 197,183 677,167

- 15808 082 19

- 208,574,445

106,076,758,998 214,000,233,794

- BE 199953 005
53,347, 547,560

33,247 847 880

14, 180,573,588 14,190.573.590

AT, 53B 421,559 135,730,374,564



Taseco Land investment Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE COMSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued}
a5 at 31 Decernbwer 2024 and for the year then ended

1.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES [aontinued)

BOB-DMHH

Armounts dus to and dus from relatad partias a= at consolidated balance shaest dates were a3

fotlows (cantinued}.

Falated partiss - Felsfionehip
Shorl-fermr loan receivalies (Nate 8)
Weat Lake Cominaon ey
Crmvrn| ooyt managamnart
C-ompany parsonnsl
Rivarviaw Luting Comman kay
Son Company managansnt

peragoninel witil 21

June 2024
Tageco Group Parent company
M. Bawyan Duc Chaiman

Lal

Long=tar o tecaivablas (Code 215)
Parerm cmpany

Taseco Group

Tranzecfians

Shor-lem loen
recstvable )

SherfHenm Iten
receivable

Sharn-lemn oan
recefvehle
ShorHam loan
recehsable

Lang-term bkoan
recetsable (I}

Gy WD

Erding belence Begirmng Helance
i, OO0, Q00,0 25, SO0, 000, 000
- 16,470, 000,000

- 100, 1 0, (U D0

- GRAR e
THTO0000,000  56801,500,000
128, 000,000,000 331,157, 120,000
126, 000,000,000 B31,157,130,000

(il This i% 2n unsecured loan with an interest rate of 5% per annum. Prncipal and interest
are payable at maturty on 24 August 2035,

(i} This is an unzecursed |oan with an inkerest mate of 4.5% per annum. Principal and interest
are payable at maturty on 22 June 2025,

Short-term loans (Mote 25)
Vest Lake Commaon key
Deveiaprment managemenl
Company personnel
Yinconstec Investes
Campany

Long-ternt Joans {Mote 25)
Wincanstes Investee
Company

Short-term
beaary iy

Curemt portion
{h}

Long-tenm aan

26,280, 800,000  11,200,000,000
17,705 579,260 -
43,885,570,280  14,200,000,000

17 805,578 260

17,806,575, 280

{iiiy This iz an unsecurad loan with an interest rate renge from 5.2% to B.5% per annum.
Principal and interest are payable at maturity on 26 June 2025,

{/) This is & kaan with 2n Interast rate of 5% per annum saaured by 3,332 055 shares of the
Group at Vinconstes Cormpany, The pincipal and intenest are payable ab maturity on 30

March 2025,

i)

i

-
—_

HE
I

N

izl



Taseco Land Investment Joint Stock Company

NOTES T0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEWMENTS (continued)
as at 31 Decembar 2024 and for the year then ended

35

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATER PARTIES (continued}

Transactons with cifrer refated parios

E09-DN/HMN

Retmuteration of members of the Board of Diraskrs (*BODT), Board of Supenvision ["BOS™

ard Mansgement:

Mame

Mr. Pham Magos Thanh
Mr. Mgunpen Minh Hai
Mr. Mguyen Tran Tung

Kr, Ok Vet Thanh

Mr. Dz Tuan Anh

his, Cae Thi Lan Huong
Mr. Bun Xuan Vuardg
M. Mguyen Yan Hghia
e, v Qo Huy

Wer. Khuat Trng Thang

Mr. Wgo Thanh Cung

TOTAL

Sakary and opersling expenses of Board of Supervision:

Satary and operaling expenses of Baard of Superyision

Fosition

Chaiman

Vice Chairmnan

Member of BOD cum
General Chrecter
Membar of BOD cukm
Beputy General Diractor
Vice Chalman

Deputy General Glrector
Baputy Ganaral Diractor
Deputy Geaneral Dimector
Peputy Genaral Director
Paplty Ganeral Diractor
unkbl 1 Mewvambar 2024
Deputy General Director
from 3 June 2024

65

Curmeeys W

Rermvnersfion
Current year Frawious yaar
BE0, Q00,0 &S00, i, 000
720 000, (W 540 (0D, 000
1,666 400,000 1,554.000,000
1,331, 305,555 1,185,550,000
1182 222 222 1,009 000,000
1,106, 003,056 BGE, 750,000
1,001 818,056 1,014,900, 000
1,054 508306 257,811,000
1,293 065,555 1,0:36,750,000
854 7r0.833 BB, 064, TEQ
414 055,505 _
11.454,920,141 __ 9.816,625,750
Crrrremsy: Which
Curredlf year FPravious yaar
132,000,000 132,000,000

&

CTY
Hife
You
AM

hah



Taseco Land Investment Jaint Stock Company BOS-DN/HN

MOTES TO THE COMSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMEMTS (conlinued)
as at 31 Decamber 2024 and for the year then ended

M.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Tha following reflacts the income and share data uzsad in the kagsic and dibted samings per
share compultations:
Currency: VAID

Currant yaar Previous yaar

Met profit after tao: attribuzable to ordinany
sharehokders BE4,B16 208,79 458 THE, 739,300
Adjustmeant of Bonus and welfare fund allocaton (%) (27,157 101 ,036) (4, 30,000,000
Met profit after tax atiributable to ordinary
shareholders for basic eamings

637,659,157,755 451,958,709 330

Wielghted average number of ordinary shares

(excluding treasury shares) for kaske samlngs per
shars 297 000,000 287 008 D00

Welghted averags number of ordirany sharas
(excluding treasury shares| adjusted for the

effect of dilution 297,000,000 207,000,000
Eamings por shara

- Bagic earmings per share 2147 1,522
- Diftifed earmings Fer shans 2147 1,088

There have baan no othar transactions involiing ordinary sharas or potential ordinane shares
betwezn the reporting dafe and the date of compleion of these consolidated financial
skEtements.

(%1 Met profit ssed o compte earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2024 was
adusted for the provisional allocaton @0 banus ahd weldfare fung from proft in 2024
fallwing the approval by the resolifion of the shareholders meating Mo, {E024ME-
ODHOCD dated 25 Apiil 2024 and resolution of the Board of Directors mesting Mo,
43,2024/MNI-HDQT dated 31 Decermber 2024,

Apart from disclosed ransactions abowve, there hawve been no other Fansactions inwvobving

ordinary shares or potential ordinary shares between the reporting date and the date of
cormpleton of these: consolldated financl statemants.

£F

Vin, St



Taseco Land tnvestmsnt Joint Stock Company BOS-DN/HN

NOTES T THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuad)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

37. SEGMENT INFCRMATION

Far fhe managemsant purposs, the operating businesses are organized and managed
according bo tha nature of the products and services provided and comprizas the fiolowing
sEgmenis:

p Real estate activiles include sakes of land {including infrastnucture) 2nd sales of real
estate properties and other real estate invesiment activities,

e Construction servies: include consmoction of infrastnuclura projects and  civilian
constuctions,

b Leasing serviees and others: include provision of office and commercial areas leasing
sanices._. at the Group's peal estata projacts and othar related saryices.

The Group monltor each segment’s perdormance for the purpose of making declshon on
resource sllocation and perfmance mssesament. The peHormanss of each segment is
assessad based on profit and loss and 15 detenmined It a censistent manner wilh the Group's
profit and kess on the consolldated financlal stataments. However, the Group's financing
actvities (ncluding Anancial expenzes and financial revenug} are monitored on a centralised
tasic and not Slocated to segment. '

Transaction prkces between seqiments ane determinad on the basis of the same confraciual
agreement as transaction with third parties. Revenue, costs and profitloss of the segment
include ansactions between segments. These transactions are alimdhated v e sonaslidats
financial stakzments.

G

7 T,

W
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Taseco Land Investment Joint Stock Company BOS-DNMHN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
a2 at 31 December 2024 and for the year then endad

=T

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(i} unallocated incomsefexpenses) mainly comprise finance income, finance axpansas,
adminlsiration expenses, ather inoome and other expanses.

(i Linaklocated assefs compiise ¢ash and ¢ash aquivalent, shovt-term investrmenls, short-
tarm loan receivables and interest raceivabtes, vale-added tae deductinba, tax and other
recerrables frorm State, long-term investments and deferred tax as=ets.

{iiiy Umallocated lighitiies comprise statutory obligstions, payables to employses, other
payakkes, kans and bhong, bonus and welfare fund, inerest aactial and defermed tax
[abilities,

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Commitmants redated to o dovolopmard of roaf astais projects

The Graug signsd contrscls for the canstruction of real ectate projests and commibments
urider these conbracts as at 31 December 2024 ama apprecimatety at WHD 1,311 hillicn (as at
21 Dacarmnber 2023 YO §18.8 billion).

Commiitmants under aperating leases where the Sroup Is g jossea

&5 gt 3 Decambar 2024, the Group leases spartments in the Alacarta Ha Long Complax
ervice and Apartmant Building under the apartmeant leazing program, spacifically:

- Zone A aparments for the perod of 10 yoars starting from e date of commencing
keazing activiias with third parties. The Group has a cormmibment o pay rental fee to
apartment owmers which is equal to 42% of this apartment leasing revenuee muliplied the
ralic between the fransfer price of feased aparment and okl transfer prices of alt
aparments being used urder sieh leasinmg program.

- Zone B gpartmatts for tha pericd of 3 yaars starting from the date of cormmencing laasing
activitiez with third parties and at rental fee eqoal o T0% of kasing profit of lsassed
apartment

The Group alae signad [and kase agreemant for the pariod of 50 yaars for the davalopmant
and imvestment in the High-end Hotsl Comples, Office Complex Landmark 55 commersial
certer and Lakeview Tower Ciai Phong projest, Annual rental Tees shall be determined and
anmounced by relevant State authoriBes,

Chaeverilig lease commithent
The Group cumently l=ts out offices under the operating leases amengament A at the

halance sheet datas, tha fitura minimum rental receivabla undar the operating lease
agraemeants is as follows:

Cirrangy, YD

Ending batance  Baginring balance

Lasz than 1 year 4,853,960, 144 11,150,332, 468
From 1 - & yaars 4,430 917,184 4,281 322,397
TATAL 13,284, 877,328 15431,6%54,865

EL)

= fmxE ovey

Iy



Taseco Land Investment Joint Stock Company BOS-DHNHN

NOTES TO THE COMSOLIDATED FINAMGIAEL STATEMEMTS (Conthnusd)
as at 31 Decarmber 2024 and for the year than endad

Ag.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTANGEMCIES {confinued)
Commiments related 1¢ tegl estate nvestment profecls
Frofect Mo, 4 Thaph Hoa

p According to Decigion Mo 4B1E/0D-UBND dated Novembar 2, 2024, of the Pedple's
Cormmittee of Thanh Hoa Province on approving the results of selecting investors bo
Implemeant the irvestmant peoject wsing land in the naw urban area undsr Project Mo, 4 of
e maw Urban area in the centsr of Thann Hoa city and the inveshiment project
implemantation contract MNa. 1RTTIPTQD202HD DTDA with the Thamh Hoa Land
Devenpment Center, the Groop of Companles bas complated the Investment 0 teshnloal
infrastructure works, constructed housing according to tha detailad planning 1/500
approved in Decision Mo, FARIODMUIBHD dated January 5, 2019, For the land arsas for
conztructing social infrastructure works, resetiemeant Bnd infrastructre. and sdocation,
after synchranously investing o Bchnical Infrastructy re works, the Company Wil hand over
to thez state for managemeant and nsa according to ragulations

FProfect Hal Yen

» According to Decision No. 5448/Q0-UBND dated December 28, 2021, of he People's
Committes of Thant Hoa Frovinee on approving the results of selectng investors b
impkement the investment projest using land for the housing area In the Hal Yen
resetlement area it Mguyan Bink commune, Tinh Sig distict (now Mouyen Binh waid,
MNahl Son town} and the imeestment project mplemantation contract using faBnd No.
02/2022/DPHD-DASDD with the Peopla's Convmittes of Nghi Son bown, the Group of
Companies has completad the investrent in technical infrastucture works, constructzd
housing =ccomding b the deteiled planning 10500 appsoved in Dedeion Mo,
2EEGIQDMIBND dated May 2, 2018, For the land areas for constructing pubdic sanfice
weorks, efter synchromously Investing in technical infrastructure works, the Company will
hand over to the stata for managemeant and use according bo requlations

Other comimitments
Commitment of free apartment management fees

According to signed agresments with customers who purchase aparments at Alacarte Ha
Long project, the Group has a commitrient to provide 10-year free of ¢harge for management
fees la apartment cwners.

Cormemitment of interes! SUpport agracment

The Group has enterad into bi-parite agreements with the banks and custamers who
purchased apartments and lands use rights from the Group's real estate progects. nder hese
aAgresments, the hanks will provide financing facilities to custormars for the purchases of real
eclale properes and fhe Group will support customers wia making payment of loan intersst
to the bank according o the interest rate and term agreed bebween the partiss.

Pt
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Taseco Land Investment Jeoint Stock Company

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FIMAMGIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
as o1 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended

19,

40,

PROFESSIONAL SERVHCE FEES

BOY-DMHM

Professional service fees with the ofobal nefwork of EY Aimms ("EY Firms™) mcumad in currant

year and prior vear wars as fllows:

Audit fees for the conpany’s separate snd
consolidated  Ahenclkl  stataments  and s
sUbsidlanes

TONG CONG

Corirrentiys WD

Currenl vear Prewons year
2, 150,004,000 1.440, 505,061
2,160,000,000 1,440,909,091

RESTATEMENT OF THE CORRESPOMDING DATA

In the consolidated financial statements for the yvear year ended 31 December 2023, the
Group applied prwisional accounting to record the business combination transscton for
Taseco Da Mang Company acquired in Movember 2023 In 2024, the Group completed
provisiontal accounting for this trensaction. Accordingfy, certain corresponding figures in the
censolidated financial statements are restated as follows,

M December
2023 {As
pravionshe slaterdt

CONSOLIDATED BALACE SHEET
227 Intangible fixed

Lode  Resources

g3sets 164461803 262
223 Cost 18, 770,126,645
258  Goodwill 177,657 857 785
H1  Defered tax

liabilities 0,417 988,408
428 Woncontoling

intarasts 454 571,141,247

7Z

Adpretmment

278,488,061.611
278,499.0461.611
(T3 5T 548 574)
55,690.812,322

20.119.693, 730

3 Detemiber
2023 fRestaled}

25h, O50, 854,873
297 269,188,258

43,578,306,211
148, 117,801,728

&43,600,840,285



Taseco Land Investment Joint Stock Company BOG-DMHH

NOTES T THE CONSQLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 21 Decamber 2024 and for tha year then ended

1. EVENTS AFTER THE BEALANCE SHEET DATE

Acconding to the Board of Directors’ Resclution Mo, 06202 ¥HO-HDOT dated 27 Fabroarny
2025, the Company's Board of Directors has approved the razults of its public offering of
addibonal shares to exisfing shareholders, as ocullined in the General Meeting of
Sharehokers' Resoltlon Mo, 0282024/NG-DHCD dated 25 April 2024 and the Board of ;

Dirsciors' Resclutlon Mo, 282024MO-HDOT dated 18 September 2024 Avcordingly, 2 totst 'ﬂﬁ
of 14,850,000 shares, each with 3 par value of VHND 10,000, amountitg 9 YHD 1485 billion. L A
Fuilcwving this affering, the Company's tolal capital has [horeased to YRD 31185 billinn, as IHak T
reflected o the 22™ amended Business Reglstration Certificate dated 11 March 20235, NG :
According to Resohution No. 10:2025/NQ-HDGT dated 18 March 2025, the tha Company's 1@?
Board of Direchw= of has approved the esisblishment of Tasaco Hai Fhong Indusirial Park P
Jaint Stack Company with a chanter capital of YHD 300 Lillion. The Company holds 2 70% -

ocwnership in this new sntity.

Thera iz no other mattar or circumzstance bhat hes 2n=sen since tha baknoe zheet dats that
reguires adjustment or disclosure in the consolidsted financial statements of the Group.

Hano, Yienam
’ Ba,,mb? ﬁmﬂ 26 March 2025
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Preprarey Chief Accauntant General Direcher
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